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New Frontiers

In Consumer
Protection

Professor Wong Yuk-shan, BBS, JP
Chairman
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Consumer protection is by nature responsive to the
changing tide of fortune of the economy. As an open economy
and marketplace, Hong Kong is wide open to the impact of a global
economy currently in uncertainty and, at times, turbulence. Hong
Kong is also in the midst of the world’s fastest emerging markets
in this region. The stage is set for a dynamic response in a new
realm of consumer protection.

During the year 2013-14 under review, the Council has
unveiled a 3-year strategic plan that will give us the new direction
and focus we need to meet the challenge in the way forward. The
task ahead promises to be as exciting, as it is demanding.

A new regulatory regime has dawned as the enforcement
of the Trade Descriptions (Unfair Trade Practices)(Amendment)
Ordinance 2012 came into force on July 19, 2013. The legislation
amendment has been on the agenda of the Council for years
in its unrelenting lobbying for greater legislative protection for
consumers. | am pleased to say our persevering effort is richly
rewarded.
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The Amendment Ordinance deals with a range of
unfair practices as revealed in consumer complaints brought
to the notice of the Council for redress. It prohibits false trade
description in relation to goods and services, misleading omissions,
aggressive commercial practices, bait advertising, bait-and-switch
and wrongly accepting payment. These are now criminal offences
under the law.

It is most encouraging to see that the massive educational
publicity generated by the Government and the Council has
resulted in growing consumer awareness and vigilance against
sales malpractices. With growing momentum over time such public
support will hopefully become a community force in an ongoing
drive against unfair practices in the marketplace. As with the other
consumer protection legislations called for by the Council, our
role is to monitor the trend of consumer complaints and foster
greater consumer awareness of any entrenched or nascent unfair
trade practices, on the one hand, and help enhance effective law
enforcement, on the other.

Equally crucial is the enactment of the Competition Ordinance
and the establishment of the Competition Commission during the year.
Our indepth report released in December on the state of competition
in the grocery market has exemplified the need to address the alleged
abuse of substantial market power of the major supermarket chains,
and the detriments ultimately to the consumer interest. The Council
has forwarded to the Competition Commission the findings on this
sector for consideration as a matter of priority upon the impending
enforcement of the Competition Ordinance.

The year also saw the enactment of the Residential
Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance and the formation of
the Sales of First-hand Residential Properties Authority. Most
significantly, the Ordinance puts an end to the long-standing
practice of pricing first-hand property sales in terms of gross floor
area instead of, rightly, the saleable area. To enhance information
disclosure and consumer protection, consumers have now a forum
for easy up-to-date online access to property sales in the market.

In the meantime, we are continuing with our series of
sectoral studies on competition and trade practices. In addition,
the Council has initiated a number of legal studies, including
exploring the feasibility of an arbitration model as an alternative
dispute resolution for aggrieved consumers. Also in the pipeline,
as part of the 3-year plan, is the study on the introduction of
a cooling-off period in transactions between consumers and
businesses giving consumers the right to rescind from such
transaction as online and telemarketing purchase, and in prepaid
contracts, involving large monetary sum and long period of
commitment.
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Continuing high inflation is an area of concern especially
to the hard-pressed consumers in the face of rising food
costs and prices of basic daily necessities. The Council spared
no efforts in what it could effectively do to help consumers
alleviate their predicament - by way of online market
surveillance of supermarket prices and through our regular
programme of surveys and comparative testing of consumer
goods and services to help consumers secure value for money
and other essential requirements such as quality, performance
and safety. A case in point concerned our tests on rice and
honey revealing the vulnerability of consumers to dubious or
harmful ingredients that went into the foodstuffs without their
knowledge.

Moreover, for instance, in the public scramble for baby
milk powder, the Council was quick to investigate on the supplies
and prices of the product and provide guidance to the anxious
parents. In response to the wave of online shopping which is
also attracting growing consumer complaints, the Council has
undertaken a series of surveys on such topics as online booking
on hotel, airline tickets, and packaged holiday tours, and even on
online dating services primarily to alert consumers to the risk of
abuse of personal privacy, and potential frauds and scams.

Besides economic factors, the changing social
environment brought on by demographic factor affects our
planning ahead. In the face of an ageing population (a global
phenomenon), we could well envisage the emergence of a
growing market of goods and services targeting the silver-
haired consumers. Our concern is to raise public awareness to
safeguard the consumer interest of the senior citizens in the
market. We have already made a start in reaching out to this
target group through joint education projects in collaboration
with social agencies and community centres.

At the other end of the age spectrum are the young
consumers. We will turn increasingly to mobile communication
technology to reach this group. We are exploring various
options. The day may come soon when not only the young but
all consumers with mobile phones could conveniently access our
customized online consumer information like consumer alerts,
product recalls, price surveys, or even CHOICE reports. The
Council’s website would also be revamped to facilitate more
interaction and communication with consumers adept with the new
social media these days.
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These are some of the issues and achievements | hope to
share with you. Allin all, we are well on our way to accomplishing
the new goals, strategies and initiatives set out in our 3-year
plan. The coming year, 2014-15, promises to be a year of historic
significance - the 40th Anniversary of the establishment of the
Consumer Council. A full programme of events and activities is
in store for implementation throughout the year. The support
of our stakeholders and the public is important to undertake
the colossal amount of work in the years ahead. | would like to
extend my utmost appreciation and thanks to them for making it
possible for us.

In closing, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere gratitude to the enormous invaluable contribution of
the Vice-Chairman, Mr. Ambrose HO, who retired from the Council
in October 2013, and 4 other retiring Council Members, Mr. Wilfred
LEE Yuen-kwong, Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, Ms. Amanda LIU Lai-yun,
and Ms. Irene YAU Oi-yuen, for their devotion and advice. | would
also like to warmly welcome the incoming Vice-Chairman, Mr. Philip
LEUNG Kwong-hon, and Council Members, Ms. Linda CHAN Ching-
fan, Mr. Clement CHAN Kam-wing, the Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin,
and Ms. WONG Shu-ming. Last but not least, | owe my heartfelt
gratitude to the dedication, diligence, and professionalism of the
Chief Executive and her team.

Professor Wong Yuk-shan, BBS, JP
Chairman
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Membership of the
Consumer Council
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Chairman /& Vice-Chairman &£ Vice-Chairman &IEfE Mr. Alvin WONG Tak-wai  Prof. Michael HUI King'man M. Samuel CHAN Ka-yan
Prof. WONG Yuk-shan, BBS, JP Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP M. Phiip LEUNG Kwong-hon ~ EfE{E5EE B BYE ) [SE N
BRI WEFEE XFMHLE  (up to 2013-10-06) (since 2013-10-07)

fAHERE R ATERD PYEKAE (5 2013-10-07)
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Ms. Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC  Dr. David CHUNG Wai-keung  Dr. Karen SHUM Hau-yan  Dr. Raymond LEUNG Siu-hong ~ Ms. Amanda LIU Lai-yun Mr. Bankee KWAN Pak-hoo
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Prof. WONG Kam-fai, MH ~ Ms. Jo Jo CHAN Shuk-fong ~ Mr. Thomas CHENG Kin-hon  Prof. Angela NG Lai-ping ~ Ms. Miranda KWOK Pui-fong ~ Mr. Chapman CHAN Chor-man
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Mr. Clement CHAN Kam-wing  Ms. Grace CHAN Man-yee  Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, Ms. Amy FUNG Dun-mi Mr. Keith LIE Kin-fu ~ Ms. WONG Shu-ming  The Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin

(since 2014-01-01) RxEZ L SBS, JP (up to 2013-10-31) EfHEL L ERELE (since 2014-01-01)  (since 2013-11-01)
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Co-opted Members of the
Consumer Council

HEELZEGRERS

Dr. Michael TSUI Fuk-sun Prof. Ron HUI Shu-yuen Ms. Constance CHOY Hok-man  Mr. Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, BBS, JP M. Raymond CHOY Wai-shek, MH, JP
iR SR LT SBHERED BIHIEE ATHL RERELD REBE ATHL

Mr. John CHIU Chi-yeung Mr. Francis FONG Po-kiu Dr. Max WONG Wai-lun Ms. Bonnie NG Hoi-lam Mr. Kelvin KWOK Hiu-fai
HEELE FiRfERE FEpEt RE\FLL (since 2013-04-01)
SRRERBSEAE

(F 2013-04-01)
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Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, BBS, JP
FRZREDSEE  EFIES  AFML

Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP
(since 2013-10-07)
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Xt (B 2013-10-07)

Mr. Andrew FUNG Wai-kwong Ms. Clara SHEK
(up to 2013-12-14) AREXt
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(Z 2013-12-14)

Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP
(up to 2013-10-07) (since 2013-11-18)
RGBS (2 2013-10-07) TEPELE RENES

XFf+ (H 2013-11-18)

Mr. Daniel C. LAM, BBS, JP
WAESE HEFES ATHL
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Highlights of 2013-14 Calendar

15 April 2013
Received Gold Award at 2013 Web
Accessibility Recognition Scheme

30 May 2013
Announcement of 3-Year Strategic Plan for
Consumer Council

2013-14FEIEENBIR

25 August 2013

Kick-off ceremony of
the amended Trade

Awards Descriptions Ordinance
20135:5H30H publicity and education

20135F4H15H AHHBEREBRR=FH TR campaign
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24-26 November 2013

Attended the Consumers International meeting in Oman

6 December 2013
Supported the Cross-Strait Conference,
“Strategic Perspectives on Consumer

=Y
2013351”%245: Protection in the 21st Century” held in Macau
26H
SNMETRETH 2013%F12A6H 21
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9 January 2014 16-17 January 2014

Naming of a travel club for unscrupulous
sales tactics
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Delegation led by Chairman visited Beijing and exchanged
information with the State Administration for Industry and
Commerce, the Beijing Administration for Industry and
Commerce, the China National Tourism Association, the China
Consumer Association and the Beijing Consumer Association on
consumer protection
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30 October 2013
Hosted the ICRT (International Consumer Research and
Testing) Asia Pacific Regional Meeting in Hong Kong
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19 December 2013
Release of “Grocery Market Study -
Market Power of
Supermarket Chains Under
Scrutiny” report
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1 January-12 February 2014
Large-scale survey conducted on supplies of powdered
formula before and after Chinese Lunar New Year
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15 March 2014

“Fix Our Phone Rights”
20145 3H15H
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Release of survey on mobile instant messaging apps in
support of the theme of 2014 World Consumer Rights Day -

AR REF AR BRI EEABHAIRE  LIBRE2014F/)

20-27 March 2014
Participation in Hong Kong Mediation Week
organised by Department of Justice
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Management Team of the

Consumer Council
EBEREREEE

1. Chief Executive, Ms. Gilly WONG Fung-han 10 j8a6f 42 (1 J))3 [5(7 /09
Bas "Rzt

2. Deputy Chief Executive, Mr. Simon CHUI Chun-king
BlfEErs  RIRFELE

3. Principal Research & Trade Practices Officer, Ms. Rosa WONG Wan-ming
MERBEFEAEFBEREE T ZE8HLt

4. Principal Complaints & Advice Officer, Ms. Sana LAI Tik-shan
KR R EEREER B 1T Bz

5. Head of Legal Affairs Division, Mr. Eddie NG Yick-hung
FEEBFEEREEE REBRE

6. Head of Consumer Education Division, Mr. WONG Koon-shing
HEERBEEEE  EEMEE

7. Principal Public Affairs Officer, Ms. Deanna CHEUNG Kin-wah (since 2014-01-02)
AHERMEREE BfELT (2014-01-02)

8. Head of Finance & Administration Division, Ms. Stephanie LING Yee-mi (since 2014-07-14)
BATE RATELERHE 1T » i faiZ £ (F2014-07-14)

9. Head of Human Resources Division, Mr. LEE Wing-kai (since 2014-06-18)
ANE RS E(T 2k fE5EE (H2014-06-18)

10.Head of Information Technology Division, Mr. Ricky NG Chi-wah
EFHRER (T REFELE
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The Consumer Council

HEERES

The Council is committed to representing the voices of
consumers by advocating their interests, enhancing their welfare
and empowering them to protect their own rights and values.
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The Consumer Council and its Functions

The Consumer Council is a statutory body which was established
in April 1974. The functions of the Council are set out in the
Consumer Council Ordinance (Cap.216).

These functions involve protecting and promoting the interests
of consumers of goods and services as well as purchasers,
mortgagors and lessees of immovable property by:

® collecting, receiving and disseminating information concerning
goods and services and immovable property

® receiving and examining complaints by consumers and giving
advice

® taking such action as justified by the information in its
possession, including tendering advice to the Government or to
any public officer

® encouraging business and professional associations to establish
codes of practice to regulate the activities of their members

® undertaking such other functions with the prior approval of the
Chief Executive in Council

Consumer Council Membership

The Council comprises a Chairperson, a Vice—Chairperson1 and
not more than 20 other Members? who are all appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR for a term of not exceeding two years.
They may be reappointed upon expiry of their respective terms of
office.
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1 See Appendix 1 for the list of past and present Chairpersons and Vice-Chairpersons of the Consumer Council.
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2 See Appendix 2 for the list of Full Council Members and Co-opted Members .
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During the year, Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon succeeded
Mr. Ambrose HO as Vice-Chairman. Four new Members, namely,
Ms. Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC, Mr. Clement CHAN Kam-wing, the
Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin, and Ms. WONG Shu-ming joined the
Consumer Council.

The Council would like to express its heartfelt thanks to Mr.
Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP, Mr. Wilfred LEE Yuen-kwong, Mr. Fred
LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP, Ms. Amanda LIU Lai-yun, and Ms. Irene YAU
Oi-yuen for their support, devotion and accrued contributions
following their retirement.

Special thanks are due to Mr. Ambrose HO for his tremendous
contributions to the work of the Consumer Council. Mr. HO had
served the Consumer Council for 10 years in various capacities,
including Vice-Chairmanship since 2007. In total, Mr. HO was the
Chairman or Vice-Chairman of six of the 13 Council Committees
or Working Groups he was involved with. Under his guidance,
the Council successfully championed the enactment of three
key pieces of legislation regarding consumer protection in 2012,
namely, the Competition Ordinance, the Residential Properties
(First-hand Sales) Ordinance and the Trade Descriptions (Unfair
Trade Practices) (Amendment) Ordinance.

Council and Committees

The Council operates through a committee structure comprising
of 11 Committees and Working Groups.3 Full Council meetings
are held on a bi-monthly basis. The Council has also continued
to co-opt professionals of different disciplines as members of
relevant committees in order to benefit from their expertise
and to facilitate studies in specific fields. The Consumer Council
Legal Action Fund is overseen by a Board of Administrators and a
Management Committee.

During the year, the Working Group on Consumer Council Resource
Centre Building Management was renamed as the Office Premises
Accommodation and Enhancement Projects, with a view to expanding
its advisory function regarding the renovation of the Council’s offices
following special funding obtained from the government.

Three new Co-opted Members joined the Consumer Council,
namely, former Vice-Chairman Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP,
Mr. Kelvin KWOK Hiu-fai, and former Consumer Council Member
Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP.
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3 See Appendix 3 for the full list of Committees and Working Groups.
ZESL TR/ MANKE B RBiR= -



Mr. Andrew FUNG Wai-kwong resigned as a Co-opted Member of
the Trade Practices and Consumer Complaints Review Committee
following his appointment as Information Coordinator of the Chief
Executive’s Office. We would like to express our gratitude to Mr.
FUNG for his contributions.

The Council Office

The Council Office, headed by the Chief Executive, employs 147
staff.

Following a reorganisation earlier in the year, the Council Office
now operates with eight functional divisions, namely, the Finance
and Administration Division, the Human Resources Division, the
Information Technology Division, the Complaints and Advice
Division, the Research and Trade Practices Division, the Legal
Affairs Division, the Public Affairs Division and the Consumer

Education Division.?

The Council is an equal opportunities employer, with the number
of disabled employees representing 0.7% of the Council Office’s
permanent staff in 2013-14.

Finance

The Council derives its income mainly from government
subvention. Other sources of income (approximately 5%) include
proceeds from the sale of the Council’s various publications.

The total recurrent and non-recurrent expenditures for the
year under review was HK$99.43 million and HK$6.35 million
respectively.’
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4 See Appendix 4 for the organisation chart of the Consumer Council.
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5 See Appendix 5 for the Auditor’s Report and Financial Statements for the accounts of the Consumer Council for 2013-14.
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Resolving Disputes Between
Consumers And Businesses

BN EREEE B

410 AN

The Council seeks redress for consumers by means of conciliation, by which disputes
are resolved between consumers and traders by mutually acceptable agreements.
Information gathered from complaints helps to facilitate the issuing of timely alerts to
the public about malpractices of traders while also enabling law enforcement agencies

to take relevant action.

HERBHNRIEHEEREEENR LUK ETRBRNERS X - U HEERRMEZRHATESNE
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Complaints and Enquiries Received

Complaints and enquiries are received by telephone, fax, in writing
or via the internet. During the year, 88% of enquiries were received
by telephone, while 49% of complaints were lodged in writing or
via the internet. Disputes between traders and consumers were
handled by means of conciliation.

Consumer Complaints Statistics

During the year, the Council received a total of 115,117 enquiries
and 31,334 consumer complaints. This represented a significant
increase of 16% in the number of complaint cases compared to
26,955 in 2012-13. (See Fig.1-3)

Although the Council is not a law enforcement agency with
investigative powers, the Council helped resolve 74% of cases with
pursuable grounds in 2013-14. (See Fig.4) For cases where traders
refused to settle or offer redress, the complainants were advised
to seek redress via other channels or by means of civil action.
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Consumers can make a complaint or enquiry by calling the Consumer Complaint and Enquiry Hotline (2929 2222), by visiting
any one of the seven Consumer Advice Centres® in person during office hours, by post, by fax, or via the Council’s website.

6 See Appendix 6 for the contact information of Consumer Advice Centres.
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Fig.1 Number of Complaints Received in the Past 3 Years
E—: BE=FRENRRET

201112 2012-13 2013-14

Year &5

31,334

27,509 26,955

Total number of complaints %/ EZEHEE

Fig.2 Top Ten Consumer Complaints in 2013-14
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Fig.3 Nature of Consumer Complaints in 2013-14
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Fig.4 Resolution Rate of Cases with Pursuable Grounds in 2013-14

B7D : 2013-14F SRS RL DY

Total number of cases received #aFiEE)

31,334

No. of cases with pursuable grounds RIERERYIREREZ

24,136

No. of cases in progress {BfEERERAIEZE

2,641

No. of cases resolved ESEERAYEZ

15,893

Resolution rate FEERINE

74%

Five Consumer Com

1 Telecommunication Services

Complaints concerning telecommunication services remained high
with 6,646 cases, representing a 3% increase compared to 2012-13.
The bulk of the complaints were related to disputes concerning fees
and charges (59%) and the quality of services (18%).

2 Telecommunication Equipment

Complaints relating to telecommunication equipment rose
13% to 2,325 cases during the year. These complaints were
overwhelmingly related to mobile handsets with 2,122 cases.
These mainly concerned issues of repair and maintenance (966
cases) and quality of goods (671 cases).

3 Electrical Appliances

Electrical appliances have routinely attracted high numbers
of consumer complaints, with 1,726 cases during the year
representing a 16% increase over the previous year. Issues
regarding quality of goods (39%) and repair and maintenance
(32%) attracted the highest number of complaints within this
category.

4 Travel Services

Disputes arising from the purchase and use of travel services,
relating to air tickets, airline services, tours and hotel bookings,
witnessed a significant rise from 981 cases in 2012-13 to 1,630
cases this year, representing an increase of 66%.
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5 Food And Entertainment Services

The number of complaints in relation to food and entertainment
services dropped to 1,571 from 2,092 in 2012-13. However, setting
aside the large number of complaints received in 2012-13 against
non-redeemable dining coupons sold by a now defunct online
group purchase company, the complaints in this category actually
increased by 84% in 2013-14. Service quality (425 cases), charge
disputes (366 cases) and sales practices (255 cases) were the major
areas of customer dissatisfaction within this category.

b REERIRERH
BRREMIREIREHIRATA2012-13F /92,0925
TRERFRSTIR-ANB AR EFERFZE
EEHH—BREAIMNELEBAR 1EZ AR
P EMBERSRELE FHRZLEERE &
FEAEBRRNRERBFAFERE84%1IT
tg - ERSEHEE NIt BEREER (425
=) ERFE (366R) KHETIE (2557R)

Trends of Consumer Complaints ;u&ismigs

Increasing Awareness on Sales Practices

The surge in the total number of complaints could be attributed
to mounting public awareness concerning unfair trade practices
in the wake of the enactment of the Trade Descriptions
(Unfair Trade Practices) (Amendment) Ordinance 2012, and
the publicity campaign which followed. Following the publicity
campaign, enquiries and complaints in relation to trade practices
subsequently increased. The publicity campaign was jointly
launched by the Consumer Council, the Customs and Excise
Department and the Communications Authority.

Further collaborations were found in the Council’s referral of

cases with allegations of unfair trade practices to these two law
enforcement agencies where appropriate.
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Steep Rise in Complaints against Travel
Services

During 2013-14, there was a steep increase in grievances
against services within the travel industry. The category of
Travel Services recorded the highest increase amongst all
statistical categories, with a jump of 66% or 1,630 cases during
the year.

Of these the majority, 60% or 985 cases, related to airline
services and ticketing problems following an increased use of
online booking of airline and hotel services. This trend has given
rise to consumer dissatisfaction concerning the quality of cabin
service and online bookings of hotel services.

Tourist Complaints on the Rise

An increase in the number of complaints from tourists
coincided with a surge in tourist arrivals. The Council
received a total of 2,934 complaints from tourists during
2013-14, a 30% increase compared to those received during
2012-13.

Complaints by tourists mainly concerned sales practices
(34%), quality of goods (22%) and price disputes (17%) in
relation to the purchase of medicine, health food, watches
and jewellery, photographic equipment and mobile phones.

The majority of the tourist complaints were lodged by
visitors from Mainland China (2,381 cases). As for tourists
from other countries, their complaints mainly involved the
quality of goods and services as well as price disputes
concerning purchases of cameras, computer products and
hotel accommodation.

Disputes on Internet Shopping Prevail

Increased shopping activity and group purchases over
the internet led to 3,552 complaints concerning online
transactions, an increase of 9% from 2012-13. Late or non-
delivery of goods (39%), price disputes (15%) and sales
practices (11%) were the main issues covered by these
complaints.
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Naming of Malpractice Traders

During the year, a travel club was named for persistent failures in
honouring an offer of free hotel accommodation after 75 complaints
were received by the Council during 2013.” The objective of the action
undertaken in January 2014 was not only to expose the malpractice
of the trader, but also to alert potential consumers about the risks of
telemarketing.

Consumers were advised to exercise caution before providing any
personal details and credit card information to telemarketers.

Enhancing Understanding of Complaints
Handling

To help the public gain a better understanding of the complaints
handling and conciliation process, the Council participated in
the first Hong Kong Mediation Week (20-27 March), which was
organised by the Department of Justice.

As one of the supporting organisations participating in the
Open Day at the Financial Dispute Resolution Centre, the
Council’s booth received and interacted with more than 200
visitors. The visitors experienced how mediation skills were
applied in the handling of consumer complaints, while they also
had their enquiries concerning a variety of consumer issues
answered.

Consumer Council Vice-Chairman Mr. Philip LEUNG
showed the coupons that were marketed by the named
trader at the press conference.
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The Council set up a booth at the Financial
Dispute Resolution Centre during Hong Kong
Mediation Week, explaining to members of the
public on how consumer complaints are handled.

7 See Appendix 7 for details of the named trader.
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Improving Product Quality And Safety
NEESEERRS

The Council undertakes research and test consumer products with the aim
to evaluate the safety, efficacy, ease of use, durability and environmental
sustainability of the products. The impartial, accurate and reliable research and
test results enable consumers to make rational choices, while also encouraging
manufacturers to improve the quality and safety of products.

HEERESNRE W EFRANEREE - MARERESHIRENFESZHE  ETMR AR
AL ZE AR ENRSERESENER ANtEFLEEEIEERERERRE -

Research and Test Reports MR R RS

During the year, 60 product research and test reports were ER CEIR) BTIREME SRR IS BEE60
published in CHOICE magazine. When products were found to fall 3 o SRR S A AN
B =Pl an NN A E VN

R A S BB BUTAERPIRISRE &

short of full compliance with mandatory or international standards,
the Council notified the relevant government regulatory bodies for

immediate follow-up action, while also making recommendations ERNEENEAERNEER  RAMK &g
to the manufacturers and their agents for product improvement. BIE BB R A SR E R RE R R 8

Throughout the years, the Council’s product testing and research
have proven to be an effective mechanism in enhancing safety and

quality of products.8 EoAlEteyiERE

£ GEE) AT ATRAVRIE A& DR ={EE5) -
Types of Product Tests

Product tests published in CHOICE can be categorised into three

types. PHMEHAGBUEELETHAE ERA

ARG B AL - LA %ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂzﬁ‘%%%@%
Firstly, those initiated by the Council and solely conducted using its BRI RBI AV A BT - E AR ST
own resources. The majority of these are conducted by accredited ==ty ;ﬁg;ﬁ,@xgﬂ;‘ghafggﬁjx;;g\ugﬁo

and independent laboratories in Hong Kong. Should local testing
facilities fail to meet the Council’s requirements, appropriate
overseas laboratories were commissioned.

/%‘ e
& | 4
--.\& wﬁ: > < M

8 See Appendix 8 and 9 for the lists of product testing reports, product indepth studies and market survey reports published during 2013-14.
R20114FEAFNERARTS  ERARERMSAEHRE —EREME R
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The second type concerns joint tests conducted by International
Consumer Research and Testing (ICRT). The ICRT is an international
consortium of more than 35 independent consumer organisations.
As an active member, the Council has benefited from the ICRT’s
joint tests through which resources and experience from other
markets can be effectively utilised.

The third type of test involves the Council working in collaboration
with various local government and statutory organisations to
conduct and publish joint product tests and reports.

Antibiotics and Sugars Adulteration in Honey

The Council’s study concerning 55 samples of honey collected in
the market attracted significant public attention as the product,
regarded by many as natural and healthy, was found to contain
antibiotic residues, pesticide residues and/or sugars adulteration.

Small quantities of antibiotic residues including streptomycins,
sulfonamides, tetracyclines and quinolones, were detected in six
samples, while traces of the pesticide residue amitraz were found
in an additional six.

For the first time, analysis was conducted on sugars adulteration
as well as the geographical origin. Results indicated that 14
samples had been adulterated with sugars. According to The Codex
Alimentarius Commission standard, honey shall not have added to
it any food ingredient, including food additives, nor shall any other
additions be made other than honey. The analysis of geographical
origin was based on the examination of the plant species of pollen
in the honey samples and in seven samples, discrepancies were

found between the origin as detected in the analysis and the origin
as labelled or described.

F_HR2HEEBHEEENALARBER

(ICRT) HEs&RIH  ICRTHE EBFEH RS
BB EHEEHER - (ERICRTRURRKE - &
SEB2RET RO BREREMLD
TIEIRIEER -

EZRERASMRANMARBUTEHM L EEEE
TR RATRIA RS -

BERENERRGRE

AR T ORBEEEAR REBRFEEAIEER
MAER ERREBLUN /B EENER - R
BE-ARABNRANERERR AHARESE

NAREZBE

NABEARDNENEHFNAER BEZERE
BRI ZE TR AN E AT AE - B AR
ERET (BHERE) ERK-

ERAMRARERLGERE REBENELRS
WM& - BRETE 4R ERE TS - RERM
FHREREEWRE BRENENAEARDECK
BRERYAINE BENWRARARIE - B2 EHNR
BARERBERANLMTBAEY mERH
B o CREAMKEOTAT S AL B EEARE
RN B ARG FLAE

25



26

Heavy Metals in Rice

A total of 34 samples of white rice and 10 samples of brown
rice were tested during the Council’s study concerning rice. The
study raised concerns about the safety of the staple food for the
majority of people in Hong Kong as excessive levels of cadmium
- a harmful heavy metal - were detected in three samples. The
amount exceeded the limit stipulated in the local regulations. It
was the first time that the public had been made aware that rice
contaminated with excessive cadmium was on sale in Hong Kong

as the specific brand names involved were disclosed.

Under the Food Adulteration (Metallic Contamination) Regulations
of Hong Kong, the cadmium content of rice shall not exceed the
legal limit of 0.1 mg/kg. One of the three samples in question was
found to contain a cadmium concentration of 0.223 mg/kg. Health
experts have warned that prolonged intake of food with high
cadmium level may have adverse effects on kidney function.

The report reminded consumers of the importance of having a
varied and balanced diet to avoid excessive exposure to certain
chemicals or contaminants from a small range of food items.

Genetically Modified Food

In a study concerning genetically modified (GM) corn ingredients
in corn and corn-based food products conducted jointly by the
Consumer Council and Centre for Food Safety (CFS), 49 samples
comprising corn-on-cob, corn kernel, corn soup, cornmeal/corn
grit, baby food and snack samples were tested. Of those tested, a
presence of GM corn ingredients was detected in 12 samples.

The Guidelines on Voluntary Labelling of GM Food (the Guidelines)
issued by the CFS recommends food containing more than 5%
of GM materials must apply “positive labelling” to indicate the
presence of “genetically modified” materials. The test found five
samples had exceeded the threshold level of 5%, with a highest
level of 64%. However, all of these samples did not disclose on the
label the presence of GM ingredients.

Mandatory labelling of all or specific types of GM food is already in
place in many areas including the European Union, Australia, New
Zealand, Japan, South Korea, Taiwan and Mainland China. The Council
urged that Hong Kong should follow suit and introduce mandatory
labelling of GM food in line with international best practice.

Claims about Blenders and Juicers

A study by the Council examined several questionable health
claims made by manufacturers of blenders and juicers.
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Some blenders sampled in the report carried claims that they could EEMEMERANEER BT RALRE TR
help consumers eat the whole fruit by blending the juice and seeds VRS BENEEE R AR EKE M NEE/AD

together for easy consumption. But while the seeds of some fruits & RE— KRBT ANAR B S — A
are edible, there is a risk that the consumption of some seeds may

. . . N R
lead to intoxication. AREREHRY+TE

Other products carried claims that juice extracted by blenders could AR D AERERNE I TEgE BRE F—
assist in weight loss despite the fact that one glass of juice contains B AT R E B A 255
RS ¢ K y= A

BERRTRLEIEZPIRRATRR -

more sugar and calories than a single piece of whole fruit. Therefore,
drinking fruit juice may not be able to achieve the stated purpose.

While some of the claims made by the manufacturers implied that — R EERE RN EESKRIEN RS LS
the appliances could extract most of the nutritional benefits out BRI ARG - RIBAS DA SrRIER B R

of the fruit or vegetable for better absorption, the Council was of

FERMER BT ELEE - EATHRNEEM

the view that faster absorption rate should not be interpreted as

evidence of more nutrients being absorbed. Dietitians interviewed L RERRRVIETHRIRS AR5/
as part of the study warned that fast absorption of sugars from MEZR A TERRRREERZMDIM -

food or juice may lead to an elevation of blood sugar, which is
undesirable especially for diabetics.

Electrical Products =5z

Dehumidifiers iipod
Some manufacturers of dehumidifiers were found to have used MR A — iR E E L A TR 181E
double sets of testing conditions in an apparent tactic to boost BEDETES i E T L RS AEREREY

the dehumidifying capacity in their claims. The sets of condition

BE HPRANREERSRNHR 4
applied by the manufacturers involved non-standard test conditions HRE - ATRBHORARRHERAR BHH

of relatively high temperature and high humidity in their favour. AR ML IFRERRIRE < 1250 AR R
Among the 12 models of dehumidifiers studied, the claims of daily N EREREIHAERE THNEBESHMES
dehumidifying capacity between the two sets of conditions differed BETBRBENE —EEE—Es L o

by over 60%, and in some cases, even by more than 100%.

AERR MR B RAVAHABRIE A2 AR

The Council was critical of the manufacturers’ approach of

using their own set of testing conditions since they might not B AmRREE LESHZARE  MBERK
accurately reflect the indoor environment when the dehumidifier RESEENWE SHEERELBMEERNES
is operating with the windows closed. The Council was also critical B

of the manufacturers’ practice of double claims as these could
be confusing to unwary consumers who are making comparisons

between products in terms of dehumidifying capacity. TIEE

AT ORERENZ2RE  EEHBEE9
Electric Heaters TTE1,498T0 AR BEABERER AR  BHRRE
Safety test were conducted on 15 models of electric heaters, with o EATSMRERRIE  FOM TR IE M AT EME R o
prices ranging from HK$99-$1,498. The models comprised ceramic 15E0RIR I RISED ) OAME e 2GS AL 2E
heaters, fan heaters, far-infrared heaters, oil-filled heaters and wall KRR o

mount heaters. Of the 15 models studied, only four were found
to be in full compliance with the requirements under international
safety standards.
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The remaining 11 models were found to fall short of the
international safety standards in terms of protection against
electrical shock and insulation, temperature increase, abnormal
operation, resistance of materials to heat and flame, electric wiring
and earthing, electrical connection, marking and instructions and/
or the labelled rated power input.

And in two of these models, it was found that some parts became
overheated under abnormal operating conditions, therefore posing
a potential fire risk. Following action by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department (EMSD), the two models concerned were recalled
by their suppliers voluntarily.

Electric Hot Water Pots

Tests were conducted on 12 electric hot water pots with respect
to safety, performance, odour and taste. All 12 models passed the
relevant safety tests, although seven failed to meet the required
standard concerning markings and instructions.

Seven models were found to have a lower capacity than the values
claimed. One was found to have a measured capacity less than
it claimed by 15%. As regards to the boiling performance, the
average time taken to boil a litre of water ranged from 8.23-9.68
minutes.

One model, though, was found to give the distilled water an
unpleasant odour and taste after the boiled water was kept in the pot
for seven days. The unpleasant odour and taste may have resulted
from the silicone rubber connection tube contained inside the pot.
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Cosmetics and Personal Care =a&srEA#EEES

RF Facial Devices for Domestic Use

While professional radiofrequency (RF) application has been proven
to be effective in improving early signs of ageing with mild-to-
moderate wrinkles and skin laxity, the Council reminded consumers
that home-use RF facial devices might not produce the same
effect due to their lower energy output.

Consumers contemplating the purchase of such devices were
advised to be aware of these limitations, notably that they may
not benefit people with sagging problems, pigmentation, brown
spots and obvious blood vessels. Also, structural problems such as
strong muscles under the eye areas and broad jaw bones could not
be alleviated with the use of RF devices.
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Consumers who had been implanted with pacemakers or with
metal implants (e.g. gold threads), or who had received permanent
dermal injections (e.g. liquid silicone) or recent dermal injections
(e.g. hyaluronic acid), or were suffering from open wounds or
rosacea were advised not to use RF facial devices.

LED Facial Devices

Light-Emitting Diode (LED) facial devices were available in four colour
light settings (blue, red, yellow and green), with each device claiming
its own level of effectiveness. However, the Council warned consumers
that the effectiveness of such devices was at best minimal.

The blue light treatment had proven effective when used
professionally while assist in reducing acne outbreaks. However,
dermatologists interviewed by the Council pointed out that blue
light was not suitable for all patients, and that it would not be
effective in the treatment of severe inflammatory acne.

Although it was unlikely to have serious side effects, potential
users were also advised that these treatments were not suitable
for patients with epilepsy and photophobic diseases or for
patients taking medicine such as antihistamines, tetracyclines and
sulfonamides. Acne patients taking isotretinoin were advised to
consult a physician prior to any light treatment.

Electronic Blood Pressure Monitors

The Council tested 27 models of home-use electronic blood
pressure monitors comprising upper arm type and the wrist
varieties. A total of 1,002 patients, 540 men and 462 women aged
between 30-94, took part in the study.

The readings taken from the samples were compared against those
of a mercury sphygmomanometer, a device generally considered
accurate by medical professionals, with reference to the protocol
of the European Society of Hypertension. The results obtained
from the analyses showed, that in general, the upper arm models
were judged to perform better in terms of accuracy.
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Publicity and Community Relations Committee Chairman
Professor Michael HUI demonstrated how the test on

the accuracy of home-use electronic blood pressure
monitors was conducted.
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Children’'s Products 5=z=%

Phthalates in Children’s Products REMAREECE
The Council tested 27 models of plastic and wooden toys and AR T2 TR EBAAS ARG SRS &

children products and found that four models contained high levels

: . o . RN EROsZEARA R EE S 2B
of phthalates - a toxic plasticiser - ranging in maximum content

from 28.6%-37.9%, which is equivalent to 286 and 379 times the =S EH28.6%6E37.9% HEFRXEIMEER
US and European Union limit of 0.1%. R (0.19%) 2865137965 -
Animal studies have indicated chronic exposure to phthalates have YR ERTET B AR R L I A IR AT IR A =X

the potential to damage the liver and the kidney as well as the B LB A TER G FHIRE W B S ATAE B

reproductive system. The health risks posed by the chemical to . - o
o E R 0373 =I52T (F1
young children were of particular concern and led the Legislative EFERBEAREEL TERRERET (MAR

Council to consider amending the Toys and Children’s Products REERRBERE) - EEGRFILIREENMRL
Safety Ordinance to introduce controls concerning the use of REELPNBLESE -
phthalates in toys and certain children’s products.

SN RISUERRER T BRA RV R E RS BEE
BEFEIMENENZRNEEXE SRR

The study also examined the mechanical and physical structure
of the products in respect of their small parts and unusual shapes

and sizes of parts that may pose a choking and suffocation hazard RIEFAR BT YN AF « BB AR BE BB
to young children. Six models failed the test assessing such M NESE S TEFZAR B R AR  NURUR AR A
physical hazards as small parts or unusual shapes and sizes, while RITBIER A R IR NEBtE » TRoRA T SRR B o

nine samples did not comply with the safety requirement and small
parts was detected after a tension test.

REEBHEREYNY

Carcinogens in Children’s Plastic Footwear ARRATERREERE BEEEE SRR
Phthalates and Polycyclic Aromatic Hydrocarbons (PAHSs) in high MW# Zaplime 8BNS RS RRRS
quantities were detected in children’s plastic footwear during the E&Y) (GHEPAHS) -

Council’s test on 28 models of casual footwear, slippers and rain

boots.

2HREANE-BLANRESEEEN5.2%E
43.3% - REARLE FIRMER  #MmEr LD
KR ME L EEEALLE - S5 EREE

The amount of a particular phthalate detected in 12 models ranged
from 15.2%-43.3%. These substances could be indirectly ingested

by children who put their hands in their mouths or through food BISmAMEE R B SIEINE EEERINER
after touching the footwear. It was also found that the use of sun YR B L o

lotion or oil-based moisturisers would also increase the amount of
migrated phthalates in contact with the skin.

Co-opted member Professor Ron HUI and Chief Executive
Ms. Gilly WONG unveiled findings about high quantities

of PAHs detected in some children’s plastic footwear.
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Of the four models detected with high amounts of PAHs, three
were also found to contain benzo[alpyrene (BaP), a carcinogenic
PAH, ranging from 1.1 ppm-3.1 ppm. PAHs are generally easily
absorbed through skin contact, and may cause irritation and even
skin cancer following long-term exposure. Consumers were advised
that wearing socks may help minimise the risk of skin contact with
the phthalates and PAHs contained in plastic footwear.

International Comparative Tests

During 2013-14, the Consumer Council joined forces with consumer

associations overseas and stepped up the collaboration with the

ICRT to conduct international comparative tests involving:

® Audio-visual and optical products including camcorders,
compact cameras, interchangeable lens cameras and AV
receivers

® Computer and telecommunication products including internet
security software, mobile phone handsets, printers and tablet
computers

® Automobiles, road vehicles and related products including child
car seats

® Household, personal and travel products including mattresses
and razors

® Household appliances including espresso coffee makers and
food processors

Of the tests conducted, reports concerning child car seats
and mattresses were the most popular topics amongst CHOICE
magazine readers. The test results concerning cameras,
meanwhile, were viewed by a significant number of users of the
Shopsmart website dedicated to visitors from Mainland China.

International comparative tests not only helped save resources,
but many of the tests offered useful and practical purchase advice
to consumers, in particular concerning more expensive products.

Surveillance of Unsafe Products in Market

The Council paid special attention to the sale of local and imported
products and would report to authorities for follow-up which
might include requesting suppliers recall any such products as
appropriate if they were deemed to be unsafe.

Through communication with other consumer organisations and
foreign authorities, the Council also kept monitoring information
globally in order to issue timely alerts to the public concerning
unsafe products that could be imported into Hong Kong.

BIEBIRTAE HPAHSHE S BRI SIEAT B
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Promoting Sustainable Consumption
WERIFEHE

The Council promotes and supports sustainable consumption through
comparative product testing and dissemination of information which
enables consumers to make environmentally friendly choices, while also
encouraging consumers to help conservation of natural resources as well
as reducing waste.

HEERIBRERRFNEN HERSIFTIHEAE HHEEEERERNER
e HE B RERRE R HDEEY -

Topical Issues on Sustainable Consumption I EHERER
Over the years, the Council has looked into a number of topics BASE AR RIS EEEENER

and issues in relation to sustainable consumption, in which

KaEE BERMA-LRE2E0 fliae R
EmLBEMHNIEREEN MARERER

environmental parameters such as energy efficiency, recyclability
of products and packaging materials, durability and emissions

of volatile organic compounds are incorporated with a view to HE#RECEMBERRE BUEEMER KE
informing consumers about the use of products and their impact WIBIE NRENSE [N B RSN - A2
on health and the environment. The Council also sent submissions MRESE RS R R EAERERE
to the government to support initiatives concerning environmental R

. iEpES
protection.

Product Recycling =zmuy

Recycling of Glass Beverage Bottles under the RARBIELEEETHE

New Producer Responsibility Scheme AEMBFRINERE X5 SREEN R
In its submission to the government, the Council supported the A TR ERTNEEE BT EESEERN
“polluter pays” principle and welcomed the proposed initiative to WIS LU E BT E IR SRS S - 1%
cover used glass bottles under a producer responsibility scheme to MR EEHE R EERESH -

reduce their dumping at landfills, which would relieve the burden

on landfills and prolong their life-span.
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While used glass containers for food or beverages are recycled
and turned into glass bottles for further use in some jurisdictions,
it is not the case in Hong Kong as most glass bottles and jars are
disposed of in landfills. Apart from beverage bottles, food and
sauce bottles or jars account for one-third of the volume of waste
glass bottles generated each year.

Waste reduction is a key element in sustainable consumption and
efforts should be directed to reuse and recycle resources, and the
public should be encouraged and facilitated to do so.

But while the general public may be ready for the practice of glass
bottles recycling, the Council is of the view that the recycling
fee should be set at a reasonable level and cover the costs of
collection and transportation. Levies can be charged according to
the trade volumes and related waste generated, and mechanisms
should be in place to prevent full transfer of recycling fees from
the manufacturers or suppliers to consumers.

Given that the number and location of collection points would be
factors affecting the rate of recovery, efforts should be made
to boost local demand for recycled materials. In this regard,
government departments should take the lead in using recycled
glass products.

The reduction of municipal waste also requires participation from all
stakeholders, including the government, manufacturers, suppliers and
consumers. Continued efforts should also be made to encourage the
community to practice waste reduction in everyday life.

AEERERLAFTICEABHIRY MR RIKE
RezOBEERBEE LR ER  BREARE A
DB MRS ETEERRE - RY
RmKEE RANARNIEERREREE
FELANBEERFIBEREN=2—"

OB RERAFEHENER—IRRRAR-
AEWRBNINERTERFEZR W RESE N
(REAREE T EEENTT

KFREARAUEREREHETETREERY
A CE BEREAESERFLL B MU
WEMEBONFEX HERRREEZENEE
HITRBBRE )R B A SRR IEZ IS - LI &
BRI ERBE 2 RENE BEES

BEREWHMNBENLESTELWEX EHER
BENDRERDHERBEVHNT R AL 1K
JFRRPIR R EE R BIEREER -

BOEHEYEESHAIENSE BRET R
B HUERHES SR REZAE SR
ABEEPERRDBEDNTA -

Energy Efficiency Performance of Domestic Appliances

Aimed at helping consumers choose electric appliances of higher
energy efficiency, energy efficiency performance became one
of the major aspects in a number of tests concerning domestic
appliances conducted by the Consumer Council during the year.

Warmth Keeping Function of Electric Hot
Water Pots and Electric Kettles

The study conducted on 12 models of electric hot water pots revealed
that the energy consumption of the tested models, which were
measured over a 24 hour period keeping a full capacity of water at
the highest temperature, was approximately 0.82-1.33 kWh per day,
costing a maximum of HK$533 a year in electricity charges.

R EBRRHVRER IR RIR

RGEHEENEEHNENRESSR FALG
AARFRMNREBRETHVAH  HEERB BRI
IImBEE—IR-

ERKEREBKENRENE

A RH T 12BN AR B EK
RE2NER BREAENKRFEIERRE
BENFEEE BRI FRANMNARENE
BEENF0.82E1.33FE/NK (kWh) » TIS4E
BB HEm=EBIE5337T
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In another test on 15 models of electric kettles, six were featured
a keep-warm function. Their design of thermal insulation and
warmth-keeping duration varied. The samples with only a 30
minute keep-warm function or with better heat insulation and/or a
sealed lid performed better in the energy consumption test. In the
worst case, two samples of normal kettle design (i.e. without heat
insulation) consumed 1.2 kWh and 1.7 kWh per day respectively,
costing an extra HK$683 a year in electricity charges.

Eco-Features of Refrigerators

The Council tested 12 models of refrigerators with a total storage
capacity ranging from 250-350 litres, and the estimated annual
electricity cost varied between HK$290-$585. Despite the variation,
all samples were verified to be of Grade One according to the
Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme. Consumers were
therefore recommended to refer to the annual energy consumption
information shown on the energy label to make an informed choice.
In addition, the study found that newer models were incorporated
with eco-features such as compressors with inverter technology,
environmental friendly refrigerant R600a and LED lighting systems.

Consumers taking long holidays away from home were advised
to turn their refrigerators to vacation- or eco-modes, which
would automatically adjust the temperature in the fresh food
compartment to a higher level and subsequently save energy.

Energy Consumption of Warm Air Clothes
Dryers

Tests were conducted on the energy efficiency of four warm air
clothes dryers and one drying bag by simulating the use for drying
ordinary damp clothes including towels, T-shirts and/or jeans.

For warm air clothes dryers, the energy consumption to dryness
was estimated to range from 0.81 kWh-1.14 kWh per kilogram of
clothes. This compared unfavourably with the energy consumption
of an average electric tumble dryer of 0.81kWh per kilogram of
clothes. In comparison, the drying bag’s energy efficiency was
even lower at 2.5 kWh per kilogram of clothes. Consumers were
reminded to compare both the positive and negative aspects of
various clothes dryers before making a purchase.

After-Sales Services of Home Washers and
Washer-Dryers

Maintenance and warranty services will have an effect on the life-
span of the products, therefore they are crucial to consumers when
choosing electrical appliances to support sustainable consumption.

S—ERHER T 15ERREERVKE  HFHE
RIBINEE - EMMRANRRINEER R - RB30D
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In the Council’s survey concerning the maintenance and warranty
services of 42 brands of household washers and washer-dryers,
warranty cover varied from 1-3 years. During the warranty period,
two-thirds (28 brands) would provide repairs even after repeated
failures, but they would not offer an exchange for a new machine.

After expiration of the warranty period, all but eight brands would
offer extended warranty plans varying in price from HK$300-
$3,000 for one year. The coverage and extra charges also varied
considerably from brand to brand.

The survey also looked into the sale of spare parts to users who
wished to arrange their own repairs. Out of the 42 brands, 29 (69%)
would sell spare parts to users for repair purposes, while the
remaining 13 brands (31%) declined on the grounds of safety.

Due to the absence of regulatory oversight, consumers are
left with little choice and may have to dispose of the electrical
appliance if spare parts and maintenance is no longer available.
Traders were advised to balance the need for safety with the need
for flexibility on the part of consumers when considering the sale
of spare parts based on their nature.

In view of legislative protection in after-sales service of household
electrical appliances in Mainland China, Taiwan, Singapore and the
European Union, it is evident that Hong Kong is lagging behind in this area.

Where have all the Tested Products Gone?

The products used for testing by the Council were put to
further use with a number of items donated to environmental
bodies, charity groups and non-profit organisations for further
consumption and recycling.

During the year, a total of 1,300 items were sent to five recipient

organisations?, including electrical appliances, household

consumables, health products as well as food and beverages.

“We collected different domestic appliances such as washing
machines, television sets, refrigerators and electric fans from
different sources, including the Consumer Council, for recycling
and further use. These appliances will be checked by registered
electrical workers to ensure safety and good condition before
they are donated to needy families, chronic patients and
disaster victims.

Donated items do not only bring a positive impact on the
recipients’ lives, but also put the new culture of ‘green consumption’
to practice, heighten people’s awareness in protecting the
environment and making full use of goods and products.”

WEEE Go Green
St.James’ Settlement

RERBEERRARE  RRE MEERD
REPH—FE=FALF -RRAPA =0z
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BRI LR EERRE  EFM4EREER
BABMER HEEHAZEAMENSHR &
SRR RARFMHMEEREEER BYEH
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AETRBE A B TR B EHRE
EmERRBRBEERE BT BBEER
EAVEEEREREDER

EmAlE TR EBeER

MRS AANERS BRERER &
TR IEEABIBERI KB B -

RER 13004 KB TRES BHE 2
PREES FREHEL BEARMRRIREF-

9 The five recipient organisations were: WEEE Go Green, Hong Chi Association, Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Lee See Ping Home for the Elderly,

St. James’ Settlement and Hong Kong AIDS Foundation.

SEHENREENRIRECRIERAE ER S RE-REFIRERER DR BHENEARLRESS -
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Collecting Market Information On

Goods And Services

BB mMRF XN HEM

The Council collects and analyses market information concerning services
and trades that carry an impact on the everyday life of consumers, enabling
consumers to compare and spend wisely. Information and opinion are
tracked on a regular and systematic basis in order to monitor long-term
trends and identify any issues of concern.

HEEREUAMMEEEEAREE R BHENTHREN BB B FHARLLE K
=2 BEGAAERSEHMRERMMET UEAREEZRIEFERMIANME-

Topics of Market Surveillance

During the year, market surveillance was carried out on a wide range
of market sectors and commodities, including grocery prices, popular
online services, insurance and personal finance services. Consumers
were informed of the choices available and of the conditions included

in the terms and conditions of the services provided.'©

Groceries #s

Supermarket Prices

Findings of the annual supermarket price survey revealed
consumers shopping in major supermarkets continued to be
affected by price increases. The annual survey on the scan data of
a basket of 200 items sold in three supermarket chains showed a
6.8% increase of the aggregated average price in 2012 compared
to 2011.

Of the 12 main categories of products surveyed, all except one
(alcoholic drinks) recorded an increase of between 1.1%-14.2%
in terms of the aggregated average. Parents were the hardest
hit as the aggregated average price increase of “milk powder/
baby products and food” of 14.2% topped the list. Among the 42

TimaH & R,

FA ASHERZENNITRRERETHEE
B BREEEEER BPINELRE  RERR
B RS - REMENBEHEE TS
FRMLAYIRIR - I IR AR IS & KOOI SR 1O

BB

FEEHERATHERET  EAEBEHEDN
HEERBEAIMETRNEE -FERAETRE
=B EEHHEN—E T H2008ERAREH
B RERTE201 25— ETERMIETER
B2011EM EF76.8%-
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10 See Appendix 10 for the list of surveys and service study reports published during 2013-14.
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sub-categories of product items, “canned fish”, “eggs”, “infant T#E - TERNN,  THRER,"TBRRA,
formula”, “canned meat”, “infant diapers” and “liquid soap” A OAAE/ TR | TS EEYSaR10%

recorded an increase of more than 10% in terms of the aggregated

. ne 99red PFHIE - T4 VAT & EHERIBN RS "B E
average price. The only two sub-categories of goods surveyed ;
which dropped in aggregated average prices were “wine” and T A TSR R B R ) PAE S
“bottled water/energy and sports drinks”.

AEEREBESREN WHLER—BR NER €
The Council continually updates its Supermarket Price Watch EHERA—T2ENELI&RE/BHHENS

webs_ite, vT/hich features prices of more than a tho_usand_ items S fE . T %ﬁiﬁT RS BT O B
sold in online food stores and supermarkets, on a daily basis. The

number of items included was increased to 1,650 (as at February K BRSBTS R = N D RIS/ RS
2014) and the data from an additional supermarket chain was E’J‘ﬁ;ﬁ:%&ﬁfjﬁjJ[]f:L(SBOIE(EEf:ZOMﬂEZH) °
incorporated, meaning a total of five online food stores and

supermarkets are now included.

Online Services %%

Online Hotel Bookings WLAERET
The Council’s study concerning the terms and conditions of online AER T+ ER MR TSRS R 55
hotel booking services on more than 10 travel websites revealed RS A R R - 4 B BB T 240 R b 0 s B

that some promotional offers and deals often came with additional

- EER S K ENERRIMNIGRR -
terms and conditions.
EEENRENIRER BEENEEHEMN
T RnEE AL ERNETIRER B4 g
FRNEENABAES I MRXSTHE  BE

Travellers who opted for special “mystery hotel” deals in selected
regions were found to have to pay even before the name and exact
location of the hotel was disclosed, and no refund or alteration

of the booking would be allowed once the transaction had been B RER A EH B 2 - MEP A IR R SR it
completed. While some websites with “price guarantees” would MERRE ) B HEEBERIRELUEENERLTE
reimburse consumers the price difference should they find a STE—BE R EEEAES  ATE RIS AR i 1

lower price for the same hotel and room type, the term was onl X " .
wer pr YP WaS oMY R LU A RR R -
confined to the same room type together with the same check-in
and check-out times.
ARIRE AN BUETRF] BERINE = £ 5
FTRRTEEMIER MR A BUHTER] RIEH B2k B

RRZ IR ERETERINER AR BHIRHAE

Cancellation policies of different websites also varied, with some
not allowing cancellations or alterations under any circumstances.

As many of the travel websites concerned were registered HEEHERNSBE —EWRE -
overseas, consumers were alerted to the difficulties that might
arise in case of complaints or disputes. B ERYRE

R XA IR E R A HRKREH
Online Dating RS UL (E RS - AT BB T 24EEABIR
The Council conducted its first ever survey concerning online R ERREERBIEMER KD BIEH
dating websites due to the increasing number of services available. ESR BB S MASSESRBHE e
Of the 24 dating websites studied, the majority required online SRR RN - BB LS RN

registration for membership or application for services, while the T D .
scale and mode of payment varied. Some carried auto-renewal AusE] HERk YRS IR E

terms for continuation of membership and payment, while others FRER LEREE TR FRE AR
set a default option to agree to regular deductions of payments ERRFPOCHIBRIIA
from the registered credit card account.
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Personal data privacy is another area identified as a concern to
consumers. The study found that some service providers may
use the personal data of users for other than dating or matching
purposes, such as using private information and photos for
advertising, or by disclosing the personal data to the parent
companies or their subsidiaries. Consumers were advised to
carefully check the privacy policies and terms and conditions
before signing up for the services of an online dating website.

Insurance %%

Coverage for High-Risk Activities

In the wake of the hot air balloon disaster in Egypt in 2013, the
Council conducted a survey concerning 46 travel insurance plans
to study the insurance coverage regarding high-risk activities.
Results of the survey disclosed a prevailing lack of transparency in
information, which created a state of confusion for consumers.

Nearly all (approximately 90%) of the pamphlets concerning travel
insurance plans studied during the survey indicated that high-risk
activities including scuba diving, bungee jumping, skiing, rafting
and parachuting were covered. But following closer inspection of
the actual policy terms contained within the insurance plans, only
three of the policies contained reference of insurance coverage for

high-risk activities.

Out of the 46 travel insurance plans in the promotional pamphlets
and policies studied in the survey, only five were found to specify
hot air balloon rides as a high-risk activity which would be covered.
Some insurers attributed the lack of information to limited space
available within the pamphlets, others, however, claimed that as long
as the high-risk activities concerned were not listed under the general
exclusions of the policies, such activities would be covered. Following
the study, the Council called on insurers to specifically detail the
terms and conditions regarding the coverage and exclusion of high-
risk activities clearly within the policy, together with the definition of
the nature of activities that would be covered.

Investment-Linked Assurance Schemes

Covered in the survey conducted by the Council were 22 investment-
linked assurance schemes (ILAS) collected from eight insurers with the
targeted premium payment terms ranging from five years to whole
life (or 100-years-old) of the insured, and of regular premiums ranging
from HK$150-$8,000 per month. Embedded in the ILAS plans were an
array of fees and charges including insurance charges, administrative
charges, early surrender charges, withdrawal charges and investment

management charges.
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Some were found to include an initial charge to pay for the (AZREATHITHRES) N FEEERES0

sale and marketing expenses of the schemes and costs of the ZFO0ETARL SR TE M/ B OE/EKEEE
insurance plans. Administrative charges to support management 0.5%BIUREL «

cost of insurers could be varied from US$50-%$90 per year, or an
annual rate of 0.5%-9% of the premium or policy account value.

REppgEEkatE (17@E) BUEURERRE

Surrender charges imposed by a majority (17 in total) of the —RERRENE 10EEFFEHRRBRRE

ILAS plans were found to be applicable up to the first 10 years BEOHMeWE MEEERER RS EEG

of the premium payment term in the event of early redemption A2 S 100% - ARSI S B = e S 15
H/BRE /

or withdrawal, and the highest charge could reach up to 100% of

. =R S= =1 =
the surrender or withdrawal sum in the first year of the premium A BERERARESRIRRBIERRE
payment term. Consumers were advised to take advantage of the SR EPAYERU MR -

cooling-off period and carefully review the terms and conditions
for purchasing ILAS plans.

Personal Finance @

Credit Card Interest Rates ERFHE

The survey conducted by the Council concerning credit card AEMABTET RIGASBE I REE #%ﬁfé
services showed that cardholders would be subjected to high EREEANEE  BXNESHERERN S
interest rates if they received a cash advance or failed to pay their RS N20R B EiE T 1S e EE RS

outstanding balance within the agreed time. Of the 20 card issuers
surveyed in the study, 18 were found to charge interest rates of

BERPHRPBUB R IRA R A 30%5 L -

30% or more for retail purchases should cardholders fail to pay RENEARREBEXZFIRA20.39%E37.14% A
their outstanding balance in full each month. The interest rate for S MRSBIAVAEEFTMERANFE39.42%FE
cash advances from credit cards ranged from 20.39%-37.14%, and 47.36% ¢

the default charge for cash advance ranged from 39.42%-47.36%.

Loan Intermediary Services

The Council expressed serious concern over the improper practices
of several operators involved in loan intermediary services. A

AEBEBTIEERTNARAURRFIEREHR
ERPNREEE L REIh  RUE | FR

common tactic of these intermediaries was to claim “No Success, B SEEERUARIRIBETHRR S BEARE
No Charge”, implying that no charge would be incurred by the AHEAEBR - BEHON AT T S8 m
consumer should the transaction fail to proceed. Invariably, the BRBEFKE LU THRIIH R eSS

claims of these intermediaries were evasive and ambiguous as to B A B R A S B
the loan details such as fees and charges, and about what was A HEEB R E TN AR

meant by “successful approval”. In addition, consumers had no BiE EREAR -
way of ascertaining whether the intermediaries were in any way
connected to authorised financial institutions.

Ag@IEEEEER NVEEEBERPN
_ | | AR ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ’]ﬂﬁ E*;‘E’%%E_{E?ﬁ
ety oy | BTN BSY 218
instead to apply for a loan directly from an authorised financial ?E{/\Klﬂéﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬂA%}‘/’(ﬁiJ&T\ﬂ = D)

institution or licensed money lender which offered a variety of AEARE-
personal loan with different interest rates to suit consumer needs.
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Fostering Competition And

A Fair Marketplace

REHIZHRFMAFRZ

The Council undertakes research and study on various aspects of marketplace
behaviour to advocate fair competition and ensure best practices within the
marketplace. Responsible trade practices and a level-playing field are conducive to
ensuring lower prices, increased choices and higher quality of products and services,
which are all desired effects of consumer satisfaction and economic efficiency.
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Topical Issues of Competition and Trade
Practices

During the year, the Council advised the government on various
matters by way of in-depth research and studies regarding
competition and trade practices in sectors including supermarkets,
electricity and telecommunications.!! The study concerning the
grocery market, which was issued in the wake of the establishment of
the Competition Commission, called for further investigation by the
regulatory body on alleged unfair trade practices within this sector.

Competition within the Grocery Market

The Council conducted a sector wide study to assess the current
state of competition in the grocery market following press reports
concerning allegations against supermarket chains of exclusionary
practices, refusal to supply to competitors and inducement of
resale price maintenance. The study, entitled “Grocery Market
Study - Market Power of Supermarket Chains under Scrutiny”, was
issued in December 2013, and attempted to corroborate if there
was prima facie anti-competitive restrictions and abuse of market

power by supermarket chains possessing substantial market power.
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The study tracked the shopping patterns of consumers in the
grocery market, findings of which indicated that consumers shop for
fresh produce and packaged food in supermarkets and wet markets
and purchase household products and necessities in supermarkets
and other retail outlets, such as personal care chain stores and
independent drug stores. In this regard, supermarket chains compete
with different types of shops in the markets respectively for food
(pre-packaged and fresh) and household necessities.

Interviews with suppliers revealed that certain issues of trade
practices required further examination. Firstly, when negotiating
supply contracts, it appeared that suppliers had no or limited
bargaining power and may be at a disadvantaged position in
relation to retailers. Secondly, exclusivity was sometimes required
by major retailers either in the supply contract or subsequent to
the contract, limiting consumer choices within the market.

However, the study arrived at the conclusion that there was
insufficient evidence suggesting a substantial degree of market
power by either of the two major supermarkets unless supermarket
chains and personal care chains within the same corporate group,
under the relevant market of retailing of household necessities,
were treated as one entity.

In addition, there was no clear indication that resale price maintenance
was enforced within the industry, although some retailers had
allegedly tried to prevent competitors from offering discounts by
complaining to suppliers and threatening to halt trade. Major retailers
were found to engage in the production of own-brand products that
competed with the other branded goods provided by their suppliers.
Such practices forced suppliers to bear high costs of unsold goods
that consequently placed the suppliers at a disadvantage.

There were also no strong indications that the large supermarket
chains were able to dictate terms to certain suppliers or have
influence over terms that suppliers offered to smaller competitors
of the supermarkets.
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The Council called on the Competition Commission to consider
examining the issue with its investigative powers when the Competition
Ordinance comes into full operation. The Council also urged the
industry to adopt a self-regulatory scheme conducive to providing
a satisfactory form of redress for market participants who were
aggrieved with what they considered unfair practices in the sector.

It was noted also with some concern that the law of competition lacked
merger and acquisition provisions except for the telecommunications
sector. Any attempted acquisitions by supermarket incumbents of
assets to the effect that new entrants were denied the opportunity
to either enter the grocery market or increase their presence, would
not be subject to regulation. The Consumer Council noted that the
Government had undertaken to review the Competition Ordinance a
few years after the full implementation of the Ordinance.

The Council will continue to monitor the sector through
independent and rigorous market surveys and inquiries. The Council
believes pro-active measures to safeguard market competition will
soon evolve and become more apparent as the impact of market
surveillance gathers momentum within society.

Future Fuel Mix of the Electricity Market

The Council studied the development of the electricity market
with respect to the consultation of the future fuel mix policy of
electricity generation, the demand side management and the
future regulatory framework.

With environmental policy objectives on the agenda against the
backdrop of climate change and clean air in Hong Kong, which all
contribute to rising costs of fuel, the Council was of the view that it
had become more crucial than ever for energy providers to increase
information transparency and implement appropriate measures for
reducing the effects that an increase in electricity tariffs may create.

Equally important was a well-designed and practical demand
management policy which encourages consumers to save energy,
and also a fair system in which residential users can equally derive
benefits from the costs saved in respect of electricity supply as a
result of demand management policy. This should exceed the financial
incentives provided under Scheme of Control Agreements for the two
energy providers to use more renewable energy and reduce demand.

The Council supported the government’s stance that the two energy
providers should increase their social obligations by devoting their efforts
to exploring future energy developments, helping the underprivileged
by means of a tariff support scheme and driving stronger disclosure on
their commitment to the future of cleaner energy.
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While the government is contemplating new initiatives and
competition for the electricity market as early as 2018, and
with its current review of the future fuel mix, it is time for the
government to require the disclosure of a comprehensive range
of performance and financial data by the two energy providers
for public scrutiny. Full disclosure by way of separate account
reporting by different segments could enhance transparency and
provide the necessary information for formulating the possible
market reform of the electricity sector beyond 2018.

Acquisition of CSL New World Mobility Limited
by HKT Limited

The proposed acquisition of CSL by another carrier licensee, HKT
Limited (the parent company of carrier licensee HKT), raised
public concerns as to whether the acquisition would have, or likely
have the effect of substantially reducing competition within the
telecommunications market.

Further, the commitment by HKT to honour their agreement with
China Mobile after the proposed transaction, which allows China
Mobile to access 50% of 3G spectrum in the market, and with
China Mobile’s holding of a 25% share of the total 4G spectrum
and possible acquisition of additional spectrum, would make China
Mobile the biggest and possibly dominant player in the long-term.

Therefore, the Council called upon the Communications Authority (CA)
to conduct a detailed investigation to assess the potential effect of
the transaction on competition within the marketplace and investigate
the likelihood that the transaction would increase prices and lower
service quality within the mobile telecommunication service sector as
well as the possible tactical consideration of the potential coordination
between mobile carriers after the transaction.

In its submission to the CA, the Council stated that the body
should closely monitor the developments within the sector and
take necessary measures when appropriate with the ultimate goal
of promoting fair competition and safeguarding the long-term
benefits of consumers in Hong Kong.

Supply and Price of Powdered Formula

Frustrated by the surge in price and out-of-stock situation of
powdered formulas, large numbers of consumers lodged complaints
with the Council, amounting to 169 related complaints in the first
quarter of 2013, of which 64 were related to short supplies and 60
about price disputes. As the supply and price problems were largely
due to parallel traders diverting large quantities of powdered formula
away from the market, the government regulated the market by
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limiting the total net weight of powdered formula carried by a person
departing Hong Kong to no more than 1.8 kg, or two cans of powdered
formula. The limit was stipulated with amendments to the Import and
Export (General) Regulations, effective on 1 March 2013, and enforced
by the Customs and Excise Department. The Council welcomed the
government’s new measure, which resulted in a significant reduction
in the number of complaints received.

The Council continued to advocate the needs of local parents in its
collaboration with the government and different stakeholders and the
Council tendered advice to the Committee on Supply Chain of Powdered
Formula, set up by the government in July 2013 to ensure stable and
sufficient supplies of powdered infant formula for local parents.

To step up surveillance of the market situation on powdered infant
formula, the Council conducted an ad hoc survey concerning
price and supply of new born infant formula before and after the
Chinese Lunar New Year in 2014, which is seen as the peak season
for parents to stock up on the product for the long holiday.

The survey covered 18 districts, and was conducted in addition
to the regular bi-monthly surveys concerning the price of infant
formulas. The survey covering the pre-Lunar New Year period
revealed varied findings on shortages of products in different
districts, with the situation of one brand being most acute.
Findings from the survey undertaken after the Lunar New Year
revealed that the situation had improved. Subsequent to the
survey, the Council discussed the findings with relevant suppliers,
and urged them to take measures to improve the situation.

While the Council was attentive to the problems in the supply chain of
powdered infant formula, it also paid attention to the representation
of infant powdered formula in advertisements and promotional
messages. The Consumer Council actively participated in the
Department of Health’s Taskforce for contribution to the development
of the Hong Kong Code of Marketing of Breastmilk Substitutes.

Protection for Retail Investors under
Professional Investor Regime

The Consumer Council responded to a consultation paper by the
Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) regarding the proposed
amendments to the Professional Investor (Pl) Regime. On a whole,
the Council supported the SFC’s Pl review and its efforts to
improve, clarify and update the distinction between professional
and retail investors. The Council considered that concerns
about whether investors had been inappropriately classified as
‘experienced’ investors and treated as professionals and therefore
crowded out from the protection mechanisms should be addressed
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to bring about greater protection and enhance the level of trust
that investors and consumers had in the financial industry.

With regard to the Pl regime, the Council considered that the
proposals contained within the consultation paper could provide a
better level of investor protection if supported by periodic reviews
of the monetary threshold for individual Pls and application of
effective suitability requirements, compliance of intermediaries in
providing appropriate product recommendations to investors, a
client opt-in mechanism to be treated as a Pl and better product
regulations to improve disclosure standards.

The Council also urged that further efforts were needed to educate
investors with respect to the difference in the level of protection
made available under the retail/professional regulatory framework.

Outbound Package Tours without Tour Escort

In response to concerns expressed by the Hong Kong Tourism
Industry Employees General Union, the Council conveyed its views
and observations to the Travel Industry Council (TIC) over the
absence of Hong Kong tour escorts for outbound package tours.

The Council noted the upward trend for local travel agencies to
dispense with tour escorts for short-distance outbound package
tours (involving cross-border land transport only) or for tours
with patrons falling below a certain threshold (usually 15 patrons).
Consumers were not explicitly informed of the situation and
the indication contained within promotion leaflets was often
inconspicuous.

The TIC was urged to make it a requirement for travel agents to
disclose to consumers by using a larger font size on leaflets and
making verbal explanations to the fact that the tour is or may
be conducted without escorts. The Council also suggested that
the industry should offer more consumer protection in cases of
tours without escorts by allowing consumers to opt out with a full
refund while also providing a round-the-clock telephone hotline
and/or other support services.

The TIC expressed no disagreement with regards to the Council’s
comments in general, however, they were in the opinion that the
existing level of protection offered to consumers is sufficient and
therefore preferred maintaining the current arrangements.
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Advancing Legal Protection for

Consumers
N8B & HENEERE

Y YT

The Council advances legal protection for consumers by submitting
views to the government and other relevant bodies regarding legal
developments, regulatory regimes and codes that may affect the position
and welfare of consumers. Consumer rights are better protected if such
rights are stipulated in law or codes of practice.
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Submissions on Legal Protection PERRERLE
During the year, the Council made five submissions from the BE—F RSB A RRERE  RERR

perspective of consumer legal protection to the government
and relevant bodies on matters including ad valorem stamp duty

MEEARGNEBRBRERIONERE SRN

for flat buyers, land titles system, legal protection rendered to 5 BETEVRRZNCEDTER T RE
consumers as unsecured creditors and the regulation of stored I MEEEERERERARENAERE
value facilities. The Council also made recommendations on the DIR B E S NERREE - Aej o gy &5

draft code of practice for Listed Sellers of Poisons (LSP). SR R A R -

Submission on the Stamp Duty (Amendment) . ~ )
2013 FENER(BET)EHIEE-EMEEY
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Bill 2013 - Increase of the Ad Valorem Stamp
Duty on Residential Property Transactions

The Council supported the proposed amendment, which aimed to
address the overheated property market, to substantially increase
the ad valorem stamp duty on all residential property transactions

except where the purchaser(s) is a Hong Kong Permanent Resident RARREBITZE  NGH IR o
(HKPR) and does not own any other residential properties in Hong
Kong at the time.
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The Council was also in support of the refund mechanism proposed
within the Bill which was catered for HKPR residential property
owners who purchased properties not for investment purposes.
Under the proposed arrangement, purchaser would initially have
to pay the increased stamp duty, but would have the extra stamp
duty paid refunded if they disposed of their original property
within six months of the transaction.

However, the Council was concerned that the six month time
limit may not be adequate and realistic given that the disposal of
properties could be subject to market volatility and conveyance
regulations. Therefore, the Council called on the Bills Committee
of the Legislative Council to consider whether the administration
should be empowered to amend or extend the proposed time limit
so as to allow the targeted purchasers an adequate period of time
to sell their original property at a reasonable market price.

Consultation on the Revised Proposal of Two-
Stage Conversion Mechanism

In response to the Land Registry’s revised proposal of a Two-Stage
Conversion Mechanism for the implementation of the Land Titles
Ordinance, the Council suggested that the Land Registry should
provide a clear explanation to the general public on important
issues such as the indefeasibility of title conferred by the proposed
mechanism, the scope and limitation of the indemnity fund
available to innocent parties for loss of title by reason of fraud
under the proposed conversion scheme, and the circumstances
where the indemnity would be capped or without cap.

Proposed Regulatory Regime for Stored Value
Facilities (SVF) and Retail Payment Systems
in Hong Kong

The Council made further response to the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority’s public consultation regarding the subject matter.
The Council reiterated its support of the proposal to establish
a mandatory licensing regime for SVF, in the belief that it could
ensure the safety and soundness of the operation of SVF related
products and services. Such regime, in the Council’s view, should
be built on clearly defined and adequately disclosed rights and
obligations of all the stakeholders of the SVF.

Meanwhile, the Council noted the growing use of non-card based
SVF such as those in electronic form stored on computers or
mobile networks. However, as these products are currently beyond
the scope of the regulatory framework, the Council suggested that
the regulatory framework be expanded to ensure users of such
SVF be adequately protected.
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Furthermore, the Council was aware that single-purpose SVF,
including pre-paid coupons and stored value membership cards,
are not regulated under both the existing framework and the
proposed regime. The Council therefore urged that the single-
purpose SVF, in particular those involving substantial amounts of
money, should be regulated.

Legislative Proposals on Improvement of the
Corporate Insolvency Law

The Council appreciated the intent of the legislative proposals to
improve the efficiency of winding up process, but also expressed
concerns over the consumers’ position as unsecured creditors in
the event of corporate insolvency.

It was submitted that consumers share similar vulnerability as
employees as they both lack the bargaining power and information
enjoyed by other creditors. The existing redress mechanism for
consumers, in the Council’s view, was also limited in scope and
failed to provide a comprehensive and adequate safety net. The
Council called for consideration of a more fundamental change
and reform in the corporate insolvency regime in Hong Kong, in
particular, moving up consumers, who have made prepayment for
goods or services, on the priority list for payment of debts.

Consultation on Draft Code of Practice for
Listed Sellers of Poisons (LSP)

In its submission to the Department of Health, the Council
expressed support for the requirements imposed by the Draft
Code, including that a LSP must ensure that nothing on the
premises may carry any suggestion that any employee is a
registered pharmacist. This is to differentiate a LSP from an
Authorised Seller of Poisons (ASP) who can sell a wider scope of
drugs, including dangerous drugs, in the presence of a registered
pharmacist. LSPs are also prohibited from pretending to, confusing
or misleading consumers that they are an ASP.

The Draft Code also requires that LSP must cooperate with
inspectors from the Department of Health during their regular
inspections, comply with a specific set of storage requirements to
ensure product safety and reliability and retain all sale documents
for a specific period of time as this may help ensure the quality,
safety, efficacy and genuineness of the pharmaceutical products
as well as assisting in tracing problematic products.
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Disseminating Consumer Information

BRBEEEM

The Council informs and guides consumers about their rights through the
communication of information by means of a diversity of media tools and
channels. Effective information dissemination empowers consumers to
be vigilant for undesirable trade practices and on alert to unsafe goods
and substandard services, while also enables the consumers to make wise
choices and act as responsible consumers.
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Championing Topical Issues via Different
Channels

During the year, the Council waged a publicity campaign regarding
the newly enacted Trade Descriptions (Unfair Trade Practices)
Amendment Ordinance using innovative ideas and presentation
via different channels and new media. Timely advice and response
were provided to media as they covered the issues relating to the
legislation from different perspectives.

Interviews or briefings were set up for the press regarding other
significant issues like competition within the grocery market,
supplies of powdered infant formula and the reassignment of 3G
spectrum.

Education Campaign on the Amended Trade
Descriptions Ordinance

The Trade Descriptions (Unfair Trade Practices) (Amendment)
Ordinance came into effect on 19 July 2013. To heighten
consumers’ awareness of their legal rights under the legislation
and the concept of “shopping smart”, a consumer education
campaign was launched in collaboration with the enforcement
agencies. Messages were conveyed in the form of videos, comics,
roving exhibitions as well as radio dramas and press interviews.
The Council also developed a dedicated website (www.consumer.
org.hk/unfair_trade_practices) to disseminate related information
on the newly enacted provisions. The website attracted a total of
120,751 page views during the year.
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The website contained a series of six one-minute dramas that
portrayed typical scenarios where traders might be found liable
for new offences under the legislation, namely, False Trade
Descriptions, Misleading Omissions, Aggressive Commercial
Practices, Bait Advertising, Bait and Switch, and Wrongly Accepting
Payment. It was followed by a brief explanation of the offence
concerned and consumer alerts were presented by a delightful
character - the “Smart Eyes”.

The videos were presented in three languages - Cantonese, Putonghua
and English. They were also played on RoadShow's BUS-TV system.

In collaboration with Radio Television Hong Kong, 13 episodes
of radio dramas were created for the purpose of promoting the
legislation, followed by question and answer opportunities by
representatives from the Council and law enforcement agencies.

To target the younger generation of consumers, the Council
also created six online comics series to offer a snapshot view
of the amended legislation. Each of the series was built around
the shopping experiences of members of the Onion family
and particularly the sales tactics they encountered and their
disappointment after they had been defrauded.

At the end of each comic episode, the icon of “Smart Eyes” - a pair
of eyes with flapping wings - appeared to offer explanations about
the offences, followed by practical advice for consumers. The online
comics attracted significant attention and gained a total of 50,585
page views. The series was also carried in newspapers including
Headline Daily, Hong Kong Economic Times and Sky Post.

“The idea of the ‘Onion Family’ came to mind as we thought of the
predicaments in which consumers are being ripped off by unscrupulous
traders; like an onion having its skins stripped off one by one. We
believed that the stories illustrating the offences would be made more
focused, vivid and impressive by a set of creative and colourful comic
figures representing a family. So to speak, it is the birth of the ‘Onion
Family’.” said Mr Simon Chui, Deputy Chief Executive of the Consumer
Council.
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CHOICE Magazine

The Council’s monthly magazine, CHOICE, is widely recognised as
an independent and impartial platform to provide credible, reliable
and useful information and advice on all matters of interest to
consumers. It features the latest test reports, research studies
as well as alerts about consumer traps and information on
complaint cases. CHOICE features regular columns to highlight
issues relating to consumer complaints, hazardous products,
health and nutrition, drug safety and investor education.

Accepting no advertisements in CHOICE or donations for the
body, the Council upholds the principles of independence
and impartiality in evaluating goods and services available to
consumers within the market.

The print edition of CHOICE is available through both subscription
and sales via retail outlets including newsstands, convenience
stores, supermarkets and bookshops throughout the territory. In
2013-14, the overall combined sales averaged 20,249 copies per
issue, split evenly between subscription and retail sales.

The July issue (#441), featuring the test report concerning Sugars
Adulteration And Antibiotics Residues Detected In Honey, along
with other topics, was deemed the most popular as the first print
of 23,000 copies sold out within a few days and a reprint of 3,000
copies was ordered to meet demand.

CHOICE has been made available online (http://choice.yp.com.hk)
since 2004. Users can access both free and paid reports published
in the current issue as well as back issues of CHOICE. There were
over 66,000 downloads during the year under review, which
represented an 11% increase compared with the previous year.

Short video drama on

the Trade Descriptions
(Unfair Trade Practices)
(Amendment) Ordinance
2012.
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Connecting with Mass Media

The Council remained in daily contact with mass media on all
matters of consumer interest, which contributes significantly
to the fulfillment of the Council’s statutory duty to disseminate
consumer information to the public. Regular press conferences
relating to CHOICE magazine coupled with briefings and interviews
on consumer issues were held for mass media throughout the
year. A total of 201 press releases and statements (101 Chinese
and 100 English) were issued during the year, most of these were
related to topics published in CHOICE magazine, in addition to
Council’s response and position concerning prominent consumer
issues and policies.

The Council also frequently participated in TV and radio
programmes during the year and actively provided information to
the media to ensure the empowerment of consumers.

In cases where traders were found to persistently engage in unfair
and dishonest practices against consumers, the Council expressed
its disapproval and alerted consumers by exposing the name and
business location of the offending parties through the mass media.

Enhancing Communication through Internet

The Council’s official website (www.consumer.org.hk) provides a
wide range of information for access by consumers, with barrier-
free features for impaired users. Information posted on the website
includes press releases, information on product recalls and alerts,
government submissions and shopping tips. Consumers can also lodge
complaints via the website or compare grocery prices among the 1,650
supermarket items which are updated daily.

Press conference on CHOICE magazine was held once a month.
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featured the test report
on honey was so popular

that the first print of
23,000 copies was sold
out within a few days, and
a reprint was ordered.
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Tourists from mainland China can also make use of the Shopsmart
website (www.shopsmart.org.hk) to learn about smart shopping
tips, notes on Hong Kong trade usage and culture as well as the
consumer protection in Hong Kong.

To provide tourists better information that leads to more
informed shopping choices, the website underwent a revamp
during the year. The website content was enhanced with
information on some of local conventional retail practices.
Complaint cases in relation to different popular commodities
for tourists, like dried seafood, jewellery and watches, and
telecommunications equipment were uploaded for users’
reference.

In view of the increasing number of tourists coming to Hong
Kong under the Individual Travel Scheme, the website also carried
additional information on lodging and transportation in the
territory, coupled with some of the rules and regulations on board
of buses and mass transit railway.

To facilitate easier browsing, new features were added to
the website which enabled readers to sort products by price
and specific rating, as well as select specific models for easy
comparison in respect of their specifications.

The website received 485,632 visits and 1,500,054 page views
during the year, and information related to mobile phones,
cosmetics and watches were the most read topics.

Shopsmart website provides a wide array of shopping tips for
tourists from mainland China.
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Raising Public Awareness through News

Without exception, this year was highlighted by the Consumer
Rights Reporting Awards and Top Ten Consumer News, organised
in collaboration with the news industry to encourage reporting on
consumer issues with a view to promoting consumer protection
and public awareness of consumer rights.

The Consumer Rights Reporting Awards

The 13th Consumer Rights Reporting Awards was organised
by the Council in association with the Hong Kong Journalists
Association and the Hong Kong Press Photographers Association,
with the objective to encourage reporting of consumer rights
protection.1?

The Council received a total of 170 entries to the Award
under seven categories: print news, print features, television
news, television features, radio features and

press photos.

radio news,

The winning entries highlighted some of the hot topics that were
of public concern during the year, such as the sales practices
and regulation of medical beauty services, Employee Choice
Arrangement of the Mandatory Provident Fund, sales tactics of
estate developers and parallel trading in baby formula and other
goods.'3

The Secretary for Commerce and Economic
Development of Hong Kong, the Hon. Gregory SO
Kam-leung, GBS, JP and some award winners at
the Consumer Rights Reporting Awards.
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12 See Appendix 12 for the list of adjudicators for the Awards.
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13 See Appendix 13 for the list of winning entries of the 13th Consumer Rights Reporting Awards.
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Top Ten Consumer News (Year of the Snake)

The event, in its 10th year, was jointly organised by the Council
along with Cable TV News, Radio Television Hong Kong and
Hong Kong Economic Times and Sky Post. To celebrate the
occasion, a 10th anniversary prize was set up for the event.

Starting from mid-January till the end of the month in 2014,
members of the public were invited to select and vote for the
top ten consumer news, out of a list of 20, that in their view
were of the utmost importance to consumers during the year
of the Snake in Hong Kong.' The event drew a total of record
high of 3,600 voters, with the number boosted by the increase
in online voters who cast their ballot via the new mobile website
created as an additional channel apart from the official website
and print entry forms.
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Top Ten Consumer News (Year of the Snake) was announced on 23 January 2014.
E+AHEHREMN2014F18238 A

14 See Appendix 14 for the poll results of Top Ten Consumer News (Year of the Snake).
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Empowering Consumers Through

Education

LI B R EIR T B IRAERE

The Council empowers consumers by means of education which allows
consumers and social groups to acquire the necessary skills and knowledge in
rational consumption, enabling them to think and act as responsible consumers.
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Education Programmes and Activities

During the year, a wide range of education programmes and
activities, comprising 221 educational talks, workshops and
seminars, were organised and conducted for various target groups,
including youth, elderly and new immigrants, as well as other
interested parties such as teachers and the vulnerable. These
activities covered a wide range of topics ranging from consumer
rights and responsibilities to consumer protection laws, and from
sustainable consumption to hot topics such as the subscription of
telecommunication services and product safety.
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Consumer Education for Youths =4=xzEs

The Consumer Culture Study Award HENLERHER
Co-organised with the Education Bureau (EDB), the 15th annual SEMASRBERAMN TEE (L ERBLE

Consumer Culture Study Award took place during the year. The
programme is one of the largest project-based learning platforms

2, E5ERKETLE BAMBRERUNE

for local secondary school students in which participants select a B B AR AR - SN ERBETIER
topic on local consumer culture for study and submitted a report AHMEE L EBNGRE EITERRATMIRR
as their entry for the Award. o

During the year, 1,241 teams from 110 secondary schools took
part in the Award.!® Over 2,500 teachers and students attended
introductory talks organised by the Council, from which they were

FR - HEXRETI0E LM, 241 M2 HEE
EE - ARAEMNRASLEE ESMER

led to contemplate a wide array of consumer issues, and learned ERBEHEM Eﬁsﬁﬁﬁa‘ﬂﬁ%gﬁi’%ﬁﬁwglﬂ
methods needed to conduct cultural studies. It was through 2 500IET4E I o [B) 8258 B Rk L s
these talks and the subsequent active engagement of students in B MR ENESE Eﬁ% = A\ B AR B T
/ /HER

conducting the study that their understanding and awareness of R

) . i BEYRFDITRE
consumer issues was enhanced and analytical ability strengthened.
Also, 133 workshops and consultation sessions covering over R > AGINEM Y1335 HI0L BRI ZER
30 thematic topics were organised for over 6,700 teachers and EINRBRA I  EAEREE TS LA
students as an extension activity of the Award. These workshops 6,700 A4S 5 o 3558 TR STE SR

were held with the aim to stimulate creativity and interest on issues
including consumer responsibility as well as care and concern for

BRARLES W5 SMMEEEESE AR

the environment. Concepts and skills in conducting and presenting HESRENERL TR RSMEEEH
consumer culture studies were also delivered to the participants. B b ERIBLSNHIT -

The Joint Award Presentation Ceremony of the 14th Consumer
Culture Study Award and the 3rd Third Age Persons Consumer
Culture Study Award was held on 23 July 2013 at the Academic
Community Hall of Hong Kong Baptist University. Officiated by the
Hon. Gregory SO Kam-leung, GBS, JP, the Secretary for Commerce
and Economic Development of Hong Kong, and attended by 620

guests, the ceremony presented a total of 61 awards to the 47

winning teams.
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15 See Appendix 15 for the list of winners of the 15th Consumer Culture Study Award.
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The Council also helped organise School Workshop Days as a
support and learning initiative for participating schools of the
Award. On a School Workshop Day, the Council conducted four to
five different workshops for as many as 200 students in a single
session, which gave them different experience and training. During
the year, School Workshop Days were held in 23 schools.

Advisory and consultation sessions conducted by staff were also
introduced as a support initiative for teachers and students to help
improve their project ideas and skills aimed at further improving
the quality of their projects. Two consultation days with four
sessions as well as 54 advisory and consultation sessions were
held during the year.

In order to sustain the interest of consumer culture studies
amongst participants, interest groups concerning consumer
culture studies were established in three local schools, each
with 10-15 members, with the assistance of the Council’s
Consumer Education Division as a pilot scheme. Monthly
training talks and workshops as well as sharing sessions were
held for the group members. These members were guided by

experienced peer mentors in conducting their study reports.

The long-running programme was well received by schools as
nearly 80% of participating schools had joined the Award for
two or more consecutive years. The success rate of participating
teams completing the study was 96%.

Since its inception, the Award had generated a fruitful
collection of over 10,700 study reports based on first-hand
data collected by students, and in turn, has helped enrich the
archives of studies on local consumer culture as well as the
pool of teaching resources.
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Consumer Education for Tertiary Students x=uzzs)

During the year, the Council also coordinated and provided training
for various local and Mainland China's universities, including Hong
Kong Shue Yan University and Shantou University.

Youth Development Service Scheme

The Youth Development Service Scheme was set up to provide
learning opportunities for young people by means of taking part
in consumer education projects. In the scheme, youth volunteers
were provided with comprehensive training and practical
opportunities while participating in the running of various events
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and projects undertaken by the Council’s Consumer Education
Division. They are also free to take up independent tasks including
working on community projects or production of educational
materials.

Currently, over 50 secondary students and university
undergraduates participated in the Scheme, with new recruits
joining each year.

Roving Exhibition and Talks on the Trade
Descriptions Ordinance

To enhance the understanding amongst young people of the Trade
Descriptions (Unfair Trade Practices) (Amendment) Ordinance, a
series of educational exhibitions and seminars were held.

In collaboration with the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education, a series of teacher training seminars and introductory
talks were also held at the Institute, in addition to the staging of a
roving exhibition on its five campuses. Also, a total of 16 education
programmes relating to the amended legislation were delivered to
tertiary institutions, secondary schools as well as community and
district groups during the year.

Consumer Education for Elderl

Third Age Persons Consumer Culture Study Award

The Third Age Persons Consumer Culture Study Award (TAPA)
was first launched in 2010 as a pilot programme for the third age
people, who are retired seniors who continue to lead a fulfilling life.
The Award engages this target group in active learning as they
have to compile their observations of consumer culture in a report
as entry to the Award. Their entries are reflective of the thoughts
and attitudes of this particular social group towards current
consumer issues and phenomena.

During the year, the 4th TAPA was jointly organised by four
social service institutions, namely the Hong Kong Council of
Social Service, the Hong Kong Association of Senior Citizens, the
Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong (Integrated
Elderly Service) and the Tsung Tsin Mission of Hong Kong Social
Service, and involved the participation of 18 teams from 11
organisations. Participants were provided with training in the form
of focus groups, briefings and introductory talks.1®
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16 See Appendix 16 for the list of winners of the 4th Third Age Persons Consumer Study Award.

BUEF=RRE TR RERSELE RS}

59



Senior Citizen’s Day 2013

The Council joined hands with the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service (HKCSS) in celebrating the 2013 Senior Citizen’s Day with
the campaign “Care for Senior Citizens’ Consumption Situation”.

The campaign’s kick-off ceremony was launched in November 2013
with a series of talks, sharing sessions, drama performance and
video episodes. More than 250 participants joined the event to learn
about the newly enacted Trade Descriptions (Unfair Trade Practices)
(Amendment) Ordinance, and the services that the Council offers for
their benefit.

The ceremony was followed by a forum organised jointly with HKCSS in
February 2014. Over 80 seniors shared their experiences as consumers,
in particular the problems they encountered in consuming banking,
finance and insurance services. The forum also presented the Council an
opportunity to learn more about the needs of senior consumers.

Tailor-Made Programmes for Senior Citizens

A total of 41 education programmes targeting senior citizens
were held in collaboration with social and community service
organisations during the year. They were tailored to meet the
needs of senior citizens taking into account their specific mode of
consumption and vulnerability to unfair trade practices.
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Consumer Education for New Immigrants and Disadvantaged

FRBAN L RISRALREEEHE EE

Vulnerability of certain social groups, such as new immigrants and
the disabled, to risks posed by unfair trade practices remained a
constant concern of the Council.

Consumer Council Chairman, Professor Wong Yuk-shan,
presented awards to some winners of the Third Age
Persons Consumer Culture Study Award.
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In collaboration with the International Social Service (Hong
Kong Branch) and New Home Association, the Council delivered
7 educational programmes during the year for newly arrived
immigrants from Mainland China.

A total of 24 specially designed educational programmes were also
delivered to meet the special needs of disadvantaged groups such
as the visually impaired, recovered mental patients and students
with mental disabilities or special educational needs.

Training Programmes for Teachers

The government's recent curriculum reform responded favorably
to the Council's call for incorporating consumer education into the
wider school curriculum. The Council was also invited to contribute
towards the design of new curricula to better incorporate
consumer education concepts in school teaching, and to meet the
increasing demand from schools.

Over the years, the Council had been commissioned to design
and host Teacher Development Courses on subjects including
Technology Education, Liberal Studies, Social and Humanities,
Technology and Living as well as Economics.

During the year, a teaching sharing session was organised for
advisory teachers of the Consumer Culture Study Award. A
teacher seminar on the newly enacted Trade Descriptions (Unfair
Trade Practices) (Amendment) Ordinance, jointly organised by the
Council with EDB, was also held in June 2014.

Staff Training for School Teachers

During the year, a staff development programme was conducted
for Humanities teachers of Maryknoll Convent School (Secondary
Section). Sharing and advisory sessions were also held for school
teachers, which concentrated on assisting the conducting
of effective consumer cultural studies and project learning
programmes.

Staff Exchange Activities with Consumer
Protection Bodies

Training and experience sharing session were also provided to
colleagues from consumer protection bodies from Mainland China
and Macau.
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Educational Resources and Materials =xg/ su2aE

Over the years, the Council has produced a wide range of free
to use teaching materials and tools for schools and the public.
Also the Council has worked closely with the Education Bureau
to develop curricula relating to consumer education for subjects
including Technology and Business, Social and Humanities and
Liberal studies.

Added to the collection of teaching materials during the year was
a DVD explaining unfair trade practices prohibited by the amended
Trade Descriptions Ordinance (TDO), which contained comics,
video clips and other educational materials. The DVD had been
dispatched to secondary schools and social service institutions
during the year.

A total of 3,000 copies of DVD containing the winning reports
from the Consumer Culture Study Award XIV were distributed to all
secondary schools with the hope the DVD could serve as a useful
tool for teachers in developing and conducting project learning
courses.

All of these resources are also available at the Consumer Council
Resources Centre situated in Tsim Sha Tsui, which holds a
comprehensive range of educational resources related to consumer
protection. The Centre is equipped with audio-visual devices,
computers and a resource library. During the year, over 760
visitors from over 100 community organisations and education
institutes used the services of the Centre.
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Collaborating With Other Parties For

Consumer Protection

EHEMEE S FREEEER

The Council ensures constant liaison and collaboration with consumer
protection agencies, community groups, regulators, government
agencies, professional bodies, either locally or overseas and at regional
and international levels, to promote consumer protection within and
beyond the borders of the HKSAR.

HEEEBIIRAHAVHE S REEMY  1tRERE  BERHE  BUTHE RS XERE
BERMESEE L RIFHBENSE EERERE-

Local Collaboration

The Council maintains close liaison with the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau (CEDB), which is responsible for
overseeing policy matters relating to general consumer protection.
The Council also works with other Government agencies and
statutory bodies to render advice on matters of consumer interest,
such as policies and legislation regarding competition, financial
services, the environment, public health, telecommunications, food
and product safety and residential property.

Members and staff of the Council sit on nearly 70 different public
advisory committees, including the Competition Commission,
the Competition Policy Advisory Group, the Department of
Health Taskforce on Hong Kong Code of Marketing of Breastmilk
Substitutes and the Hong Kong Deposit Protection Board.'”
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Meeting with representatives of Hong Kong Doctors Union
to discuss issues related to professional indemnity cover.

Received a delegation from Hong Kong Chamber of
Insurance Intermediaries.
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17 See Appendix 17 for the list of external committees attended by Council Members and Staff.
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Collaboration across the Straits

The Council continued to maintain close liaison with its
counterparts in the Mainland through the exchange of information.
Throughout the year, 191 delegates from consumer organisations
and related bodies from different parts of Mainland China visited
the Council, bringing valuable opportunities for the Council to
share experiences and views on consumer protection.

To further strengthen ties and exchange, the Council actively took
part in the events held by its counterparts in the Mainland, Macau
and Taiwan. These events, including seminars and conferences,
covered a wide range of topics on consumer protection, such
as development of an arbitration system and legal protection of
personal data privacy.

In January 2014, a Consumer Council delegation led by the
Chairman visited a number of offices in Beijing responsible for
policy matters concerning consumer protection, namely the
State Administration for Industry and Commerce, the Beijing
Administration for Industry and Commerce, the China National
Tourism Association, the China Consumer Association and the
Beijing Consumers’ Association. Information and experience were
exchanged on various areas of work of the Council, in particular
those relating to complaints handling and product testing.

Regional and International Collaboration
The Consumer Council is an Executive and Council member of
Consumers International (Cl) which is a federation of consumer
organisations comprising 220 members from 115 countries and
territories, with the missions to support and strengthen member
organisations and the consumer movement in general while also
representing consumer interests at global and regional levels.

During the year, the Council participated in the revision of the
United Nations Guidelines on Consumer Protection (UNGCP)
by completing a matrix related to the application of UNGCP
principles in Hong Kong, and suggesting areas of concern that
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A delegation led by Chairman
: Professor Wong Yuk-shan,
visited bodies and government

departments in Beijing that dealt
with consumer protection issues.
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should be incorporated into the UNGCP in the future. These
areas included financial services, e-commerce, data privacy,
international cooperation and funding of consumer protection
agencies. The Council was also invited to participate in four
working groups established by the United Nations Conference
on Trade Development, namely E-commerce, Financial Services,
Implementations of the UNGCP and Other Issues.

In support of the advocacy of Cl, the Council responded to the
CI’s launch of the “Fix Our Phone Rights” campaign on 2014 World
Consumer Rights Day (15 March 2014) with a survey on the instant
messaging applications for Android smartphones. Findings of the
survey revealed problems of excessive collection of personal data.
The publicity generated helped raise the awareness of mobile
phone users on data privacy protection.

As a member of the ICRT, the Council helped initiate ideas for joint
testing. The joint tests organised by the ICRT that were published
in CHOICE magazine during the year included those involving
mobile phone handsets, camcorders, child car seats, mattresses
and expresso coffee makers.

In October 2013, the Council hosted an ICRT Asia Pacific meeting in
Hong Kong to forge closer ties among ICRT’s Asia Pacific members.
This was the third time that such a meeting had been held in Hong
Kong. The meeting was attended by 16 representatives from nine
countries and regions, including Australia, South Korea, India,
Japan, China, New Zealand, Singapore and Thailand. The Council
made use of this opportunity to discuss the feasibility of joint
comparative product tests that might benefit members by sharing
results, technical knowledge and costs.

Collaboration with different local and overseas parties also helped
the Council monitor developments of consumer protection around
the globe, and enrich itself in knowledge and experience of
consumer protection to the benefit of consumers.

The Council hosted the ICRT Asia Pacific Regional Meeting in October 2013.
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Commendations And Compliments

== my =
e ntF/\ s n%

During the year, the Consumer Council won recognition for its
dedicated service to the community and received compliments and

letters of thanks from consumers.

HEEZEEROBRNRF TR FARERRNZEEENRSE &

BIZBR -

Gold Award for Barrier Free Website

The Council won recognition for its barrier-free website specifically
catered for users with special needs. In support of an inclusive society,
the Council incorporated barrier-free features into its website in 2012
with the aim of facilitating equal access for users with special needs.

The information contained on the barrier-free website is synchronised
with the content of the main Council’s official website (www.consumer.
org.hk). Users who browse the website using assisted technologies
have access to the same content without the loss of any information.

The website received the Gold Award at the 2013 Web Accessibility
Recognition Scheme Awards for attaining the highest criteria in terms
of barrier-free accessibility. The awards were co-organised by the
Office of the Government Chief Information Officer and the Equal
Opportunities Commission.

Deputy Chief Executive Mr. Simon CHUI (middle), Head of Information
Technology Division, Mr. Ricky NG (left) and Public Affairs Officer
Ms. LAU Yin-wah (right) received the award at the Web Accessibility
Recognition Scheme Awards Presentation Ceremony.
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Words of Thanks B 8 e

During the year, Council staff received letters of appreciation AEIENEE R SR AS 7R BRI &

from consumers, who had sought redress by means of lodging
complaints or filing claims with the Consumer Legal Action Fund.

We would like to express our sincere thanks to members of the BAROEHTRHBFIRISE  TRELLABAFIRY

public for having trust in our service, and a team of professional FEEPR DIRMMAINAORBFEEMORE &R
staff who served consumers with real care and with all ears! E—y

IFEREIER AT 0IR § RS PAGT1280 L R AEHI ATV B 2 T8 1R | Ak R
MR AKX KEIE 3 LIFHHR 1

----------------------------------------------------------

I truly appreciated your diligent work on this case. It showed me that someone
really cares about these aspects and frankly it helped me heal a wound. You
have definitely supported me in managing this emotional distress, which indeed
is highly valuable and thus much appreciated. Thank you very much! You did a
great job here.

ERE T e SEFIMAPIA BRI REAFEE R KRB
IR SRS ERCN A SRV ECEI R 2 2 T R L S AT) TRl 2 ¢ A
AARBERLH  RKGEAGUR & AR AH T BEARERB R AR k%o
v i o B O PIME B R B R Y SRR E AR | e K EZ0
AR B A S O Ao R @ At AR A RS BAv R BT g 5
RAtE AHARVIET AT A1 BN BRI R

I sincerely thank you and your entire team for taking care with my complaint.
I felt I was given equal treatment although the complaint was lodged from
outside Hong Kong. This is the way, well done.

-----------------------------------------------------------
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Appendix 1 « fi#—

Appendices fi# 2013-14

, Consumer Council
Former Chairpersons and Vice-Chairpersons

BERZLR

Year &1

04/1974 - 03/1975
tRFEMAELHFE=R
04/1975 - 03/1980
tHRFOAENTE=R
04/1980 - 10/1984
NEFEMAZE/\ME+H
10/1984 - 10/1988
NOE+AENNETA

10/1988 - 10/1991
NNEFREA—FTR

10/1991 - 10/1997
N—F+RENLFH
10/1997 - 07/1999

NEETRENANELA

09/1999 - 09/2005
NANFNAREFRFNA

09/2005 - 06/2007
ShENAZTEARR
07/2007 - 06/2012

SLFELRE—FXA

Year &5
04/1987 - 03/1989

NEENRAE/N\NE=R

04/1989 - 10/1991
JNEEAEN—FTH

10/1991 - 10/1993
N—FTRENZFTR

10/1993 - 10/1997
N=FF+RAENLFTH

10/1997- 10/2001
NEFHAZS—F1A
10/2001- 10/2007

FHTAZEFTETA

10/2007- 10/2013
SHETAE—=EA

g2 — FRERBAIER

Former Chairpersons /& &
Sir KAN Yuet-keung, CBE, JP

&R Bt CBE» AF AL

Dr. LO Kwee-seong, OBE, CBE, JP
FERERETS L OBE > CBE AL

Dr. Gallant HO Yiu-tai, JP

(C) 2 m N

Mrs. Selina CHOW LIANG Shuk-yee, GBS, JP
ARG L SEFES AT ML

Mr. Martin LEE Chu-ming, SC, JP
TRESRERNER At

Prof. Edward CHEN Kwan-yiu, GBS, JP
BRIEEHIR S KFES  AFHL

The Hon. Anna WU Hung-yuk, GBS, JP

I EES @XM EF KMt

Prof. Andrew CHAN Chi-fai, SBS, JP
REEBHR REFES AL

Prof. The Hon. K. C. CHAN, SBS, JP
RER@#HIL - BETES AL

Prof. The Hon. Anthony CHEUNG Bing-leung, GBS, JP
RARHR EXFES AL

Former Vice-Chairpersons E/E&IEE
Mr. TANG Kwai-nang, JP

SRRERRSE A AL

Prof. Edward CHEN Kwan-yiu, GBS,JP
FRIEER SXFES APt

Mr. Justein WONG Chun, BBS, JP
BiREL WEFES Pt

The Hon. Anna WU Hung-yuk, GBS, JP
A ERE @ XFEE XMt

Dr. John HO Dit-sang

fAIRRAEEL

Mr. Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, BBS, JP
SRIMEERED  SHERFI 2T KT

Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP
MR E RN SRR EE ) At
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Membership of the ]
Consumer Council

HEEREEERE

4
N

Chairman £J§
Prof. WONG Yuk-shan, BBS, JP & |L##%  fALFIES A M+

Vice-Chairman E|E /&
Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP (up to 2013-10-06 ) fhsk & FALEET SR 725 AT+ (Z 2013-10-06 )

Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon ( since 2013-10-07 ) X & 454 ( B 2013-10-07)

Member £&
Ms. Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC ( since 2014-01-01 ) BREFZE R AEAD ( H 2014-01-01)

Mr. Chapman CHAN Chor-man [RIZE L4

Mr. Samuel CHAN Ka-yan PBRZRER ARAEEM

Mr. Clement CHAN Kam-wing ( since 2014-01-01 ) fR$8445554 ( 3 2014-01-01)
Ms. Grace CHAN Man-yee X EHZ+

Ms. Jo Jo CHAN Shuk-fong FfIF% 24

Mr. Thomas CHENG Kin-hon ZRiE&&5e4E

Dr. David CHUNG Wai-keung $E{@i&f#1

Ms. Amy FUNG Dun-mi JEfHBZ+

The Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin ( since 2013-11-01 ) {AIZ B+ & ( B 2013-11-01)
Prof. Michael HUI King-man F&CF

Mr. Bankee KWAN Pak-hoo BEZLAE

Ms. Miranda KWOK Pui-fong ZF3 752404

Mr. Wilfred LEE Yuen-kwong (up to 2013-12-31 ) Z=Joll%c4 ( & 2013-12-31)
Dr. Raymond LEUNG Siu-hong 2/ EEtE+

Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP (up to 2013-10-31 ) ZX#ERRS A SRECHFI 2 5 AL (& 2013-10-31)
Mr. Keith LIE Kin-fu Z:E 54

Ms. Amanda LIU Lai-yun (up to 2013-12-31 ) BEER AT ( & 2013-12-31)

Prof. Angela NG Lai-ping ZEESE#3%

Dr. Karen SHUM Hau-yan JLZEMRE4

Prof. WONG Kam-fai, MH Zif}E#IR  LEF=

Ms. WONG Shu-ming ( since 2014-01-01 ) = &FBA% =+ (  2014-01-01)

Mr. Alvin WONG Tak-wai s={&E5L4

Ms. Irene YAU Oi-yuen (up to 2013-12-31) EfE8RRE (= 2013-12-31)

69



70

Appendix 2 « [t —

Co-opted Member JHEEZETILEERS

Mr. CHAN Ka-kui, BBS, JP R F05c4  SERAIZ & AT

Mr. John CHIU Chi-yeung #E#5E5E4E

Ms. Constance CHOY Hok-man 3E2F2EM

Mr. Raymond CHOY Wai-shek, MH, JP 2@ R %A BB E  FHL

Mr. Francis FONG Po-kiu F{REE4

Mr. Andrew FUNG Wai-kwong (up to 2013-12-14 ) JEEXSE4E (= 2013-12-14)

Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP ( since 2013-10-07 ) fAliizR & SRALRRD  $REFI 2T AT H8+ (B 2013-10-07 )
Prof. Ron HUI Shu-yuen #FfHRZI%

Mr. Kelvin KWOK Hiu-fai ( since 2013-04-01 ) SFREERESA (B 2013-04-01)

Mr. Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, BBS, JP ZEIEERN  SAEFIEE A4+

Mr. Daniel C. LAM, BBS, JP MRESEA  SREFIE S » AT Hit

Mr. Edmond LAM King-fung #A&hZ242E0

Dr. LAW Cheung-kwok ZE#E B+

Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon (up to 2013-10-06 ) Z5¢£ 44 (& 2013-10-06)

Mr. Michael LI Hon-shing, KSJ, BBS, JP &4 RERE NS B  RAES AL
Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP ( since 2013-11-18 ) Z=#ERAc A4 SR EFZ T AF ML ( H 2013-11-18)
The Hon. Charles Peter MOK B HEE

Ms. Bonnie NG Hoi-lam 28 H 4+

Ms. Clara SHEK AREL+

Dr. Michael TSUI Fuk-sun #R{@%2584E

Dr. Max WONG Wai-lun FEE#E1+

Ms. Cecilia WOO Lee-wah RBF]ZEERT
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Membership of the Committees,
Working Groups and Advisory Groups

NEEE

Staff & Finance Committee A REAF%/\#H
Chairman &
Prof. WONG Yuk-shan, BBS, JP & &% SHEF 2 AL

Vice-Chairman SIF &
Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP (up to 2013-10-06 ) fAlfisk &R AR  SREFIE & » AFHRL (F 2013-10-06)
Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon ( since 2013-11-18 ) /& 504 ( H 2013-11-18)

Member &£&

Mr. Chapman CHAN Chor-man [RIE 54

Mr. Bankee KWAN Pak-hoo BB =44

Ms. Miranda KWOK Pui-fong SB35 22+

Prof. WONG Kam-fai, MH SEiPEHIT L 2T
Mr. Alvin WONG Tak-wai &E{&EELE4

Audit Committee B\

Convenor ZE A
Mr. Alvin WONG Tak-wai &={EE54

Member &8

Mr. Clement CHAN Kam-wing ( since 2014-01-27 ) [$848454 ( f 2014-01-27 )
Dr. David CHUNG Wai-keung $E@%&1#EL
Mr. Wilfred LEE Yuen-kwong (up to 2013-12-31 ) Z=JTHI%e4E ( E 2013-12-31)

Co-opted Member 1&#EES
Ms. Cecilia WOO Lee-wah EFFIZEZAM

Competition Policy Committee 5 SRIAZ/\H

Chairman E£J&E
Mr. Thomas CHENG Kin-hon EBjE=Egsc4E

Vice-Chairman SIF &
Mr. Samuel CHAN Ka-yan FRZRER ARIEED

Member £ 8

Ms. Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC ( since 2014-01-27 ) [REF 5 & R AR ( B 2014-01-27 )

Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP (up to 2013-10-06 ) Al sk & RAERRD » SREFAZ S AP L (= 2013-10-06)
The Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin ( since 2013-11-18 ) {2 & & ( H 2013-11-18)

Mr. Wilfred LEE Yuen-kwong (up to 2013-12-31 ) ZXJoll4e4 ( & 2013-12-31)

Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon ( since 2013-11-18 ) X% 504 ( H 2013-11-18)
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Dr. Raymond LEUNG Siu-hong A EiEL
Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP (up to 2013-10-31 ) Z#ERF%A - RRFE S AF#L (F 2013-10-31)
Mr. Keith LIE Kin-fu M54

Co-opted Member 1&EES

Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP ( since 2013-10-07 ) fAlliER&E R AR » SRR FI 2 & AFH#H+ ( B 2013-10-07)
Mr. Kelvin KWOK Hiu-fai ( since 2013-04-01 ) SREERESE4E ( 3 2013-04-01)

Dr. LAW Cheung-kwok ZE#EIE L

Legal Protection Committee EE{REEF/\E

Chairman &
Mr. Thomas CHENG Kin-hon ( since 2013-11-18 ) &f#2#85c4 ( 5 2013-11-18)
Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP (up to 2013-10-07 ) fAliE & PRAEAD - IREXF 25 AT+ (£ 2013-10-07 )

Vice-Chairman &lEJ&
Mr. Samuel CHAN Ka-yan ( since 2013-11-18 ) RS B% A 42HT ( F3 2013-11-18)
Mr. Thomas CHENG Kin-hon (up to 2013-11-17 ) €884 (& 2013-11-17)

Member &8

Ms. Linda CHAN Ching-fan, SC ( since 2014-01-27 ) BEF 5 &R A4RE ( B 2014-01-27 )
Mr. Samuel CHAN Ka-yan (up to 2013-11-17 ) BREREEA/ERT ( & 2013-11-17)

Ms. Amanda LIU Lai-yun (up to 2013-12-31 ) BEEERI£EAD ( & 2013-12-31)

Mr. Alvin WONG Tak-wai &=1E{ESE4E

JEE

Co-opted Member 1&:8EHE
Ms. Constance CHOY Hok-man £XE2324E0
Mr. Edmond LAM King-fung #A&hE242Em

Publicity & Community Relations Committee E{ER&itERIH//\H

Chairman E£J&
Prof. Michael HUI King-man sF&CHF

Vice-Chairman gIFEE
Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP (up to 2013-10-07 ) A=t &R ALERAD R RF 2T A F#+ ( E 2013-10-07 )
Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon ( since 2013-11-18 ) 2J¢# 44 ( F 2013-11-18 )

Member £ 8

Ms. Grace CHAN Man-yee R EZ+

Ms. Jo Jo CHAN Shuk-fong BflF% 22+

Dr. David CHUNG Wai-keung $E{@i&tH1

Ms. Amy FUNG Dun-mi J&HEZZE

Mr. Keith LIE Kin-fu ZXEF24e4

Ms. Amanda LIU Lai-yun (up to 2013-12-31 ) BEEERI#EAD ( & 2013-12-31)
Prof. Angela NG Lai-ping R EESE#3

Co-opted Member ;&% 8
Prof. Ron HUI Shu-yuen #FHR#I%
Ms. Clara SHEK A=EX L

Dr. Max WONG Wai-lun EZfE+
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Research & Testing Committee A% RZitEs/)\iE

Chairman &
Prof. WONG Kam-fai, MH S$si8#5 L4 g)=

Vice-Chairman BIFEfE
Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP (up to 2013-10-31 ) ZX#ERRS A SRECHFI 2 55 AL (& 2013-10-31)
Dr. Karen SHUM Hau-yan ( since 2013-11-18 ) iZEREE4E ( B 2013-11-18)

Member £ 8

Mr. Ambrose HO, SBS, SC, JP (up to 2013-10-06 ) A& R AR IREFIEE » A FHH1 (= 2013-10-06)
The Hon. Steven HO Chun-yin ( since 2013-11-18 ) A& &% E ( Fy 2013-11-18)

Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon ( since 2013-10-07 ) 2 ¢52 554 ( B 2013-10-07 )

Dr. Raymond LEUNG Siu-hong ZAEEiEL

Dr. Karen SHUM Hau-yan (up to 2013-11-17 ) Wi ZEREE4E (£ 2013-11-17)

Ms. WONG Shu-ming ( since 2014-01-27 ) & &FRAZct ( B 2014-01-27 )

Mr. Alvin WONG Tak-wai =EELAE

Co-opted Member 1&:#E 5

Mr. Raymond CHOY Wai-shek, MH, JP Z{&A5L4 - LA BE)E » T4+

Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon (up to 2013-10-06 ) Z¢#E 544 (& 2013-10-06)
Dr. Michael TSUI Fuk-sun {22258

Trade Practices and Consumer Complaints Review Committee
mEFAME A HEERRES/E

Chairman E£J&

Prof. Angela NG Lai-ping REESEHIZ

Vice-Chairman &lEJ&
Mr. Chapman CHAN Chor-man (#5564

Member £ 8

Mr. Samuel CHAN Ka-yan PRZRER RIERM

Ms. Grace CHAN Man-yee R EZ+

Ms. Amy FUNG Dun-mi J&HERZ+

Prof. Michael HUI King-man &F&C5%

Mr. Bankee KWAN Pak-hoo BEES5E4E

Mr. Wilfred LEE Yuen-kwong ( up to 2013-12-31) ZJtlll4e4 (&= 2013-12-31)

Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP (up to 2013-10-31 ) ZZERASA  SREFZ T AL (E 2013-10-31)

Co-opted Member 1&:EEZE

Mr. Andrew FUNG Wai-kwong (up to 2013-12-14 ) JEEH 4 ( F 2013-12-14)

Mr. Larry KWOK Lam-kwong, BBS, JP SR EEEEN @ SREFI2 T » ATt

Mr. Daniel C. LAM, BBS, JP #RE5c4  SAEKFI 25 » A4+

Mr. Fred LI Wah-ming, SBS, JP ( since 2013-11-18 ) Z=#ERAc A SREFE T AFHML ( H 2013-11-18)
Ms. Bonnie NG Hoi-lam R854+
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IT Expert Advisory Group HFiflBHXEFREFE/HE
Convenor BE A
Dr. David CHUNG Wai-keung $E@%&1E L

Member £ 8
Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon ( since 2013-10-07 ) Z25¢5# 564 (B 2013-10-07)
Mr. Keith LIE Kin-fu 22254

JEE

Co-opted Member 1&#E S

Mr. John CHIU Chi-yeung ##%5e4

Mr. Francis FONG Po-kiu J5{R{E54

Mr. Philip LEUNG Kwong-hon (up to 2013-10-06 ) 2¢# 44 (£ 2013-10-06)
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}231214_03_01 e EREE MATBE DR A SATEE - ANEREAE AR
=

75



76

CONSUMER COUNCIL
(Established in Hong Kong under the Consumer
Council Ordinance)

Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

Appendix 5 « fif#k A




CONSUMER COUNCIL

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PAGE(S)

1&2

7-21

Appendix 5 « gk A

77



78

Appendix 5 gk A

Deloitte.
1=ED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CONSUMER COUNCIL
(Established in Hong Kong under the Consumer Council Ordinance)

We have audited the financial statements of Consumer Council (the "Council") set out on pages 3
to 21, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the income
and expenditure statement, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Council's Members' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Council's members are responsible for the preparation of the financiai statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control as the
Council's members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Council's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the Council's members, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF CONSUMER COUNCIL - continued
(Established in Hong Kong under the Consumer Council Ordinance)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Council's
affairs as at 31 March 2014 and of its surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

Dimite (o bl

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 July 2014
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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NOTES 2014 2013
HK$ HK$
Income
Government subvention 94,537,000 85,885,000
Non-recurrent projects subvention 6 7,452,712 6,865,867
Sales of "Choice" magazine 7 2,071,899 1,920,658
Administrative service income 2,354,000 2,374,000
Interest on bank deposits 335,291 329,121
Sundry income 164,918 270,903
106,915,820 97,645,549
Less:
Expenditure
Staff costs 8 77,074,272 74,574,245
Testing and research 5,560,756 5,091,688
Non-recurrent projects expenses 9 6,353,271 5,483,731
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 2,646,103 3,090,540
Office equipment and maintenance 1,511,638 966,467
Office accommodation and related expenses 3,040,754 2,704,895
Auditor's remuneration 148,500 142,000
Consumer education 566,909 472,610
Consumer international membership fees 356,369 343,228
Council member expenses 53,000 48,000
Interest expense on secured bank borrowing not
wholly repayable within five years 22,360 27,832
International conferences and duty visits 430,471 312,584
Production and marketing cost of "Choice" magazine 1,667,304 1,528,302
Publicity and public relations 1,465,950 437,473
Other administrative expenses 4,884,727 2,286,541
105,782,384 97,510,136
Surplus for the year 1,133,436 135,413
-3-
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 MARCH 2014
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Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Loans and advances to staff

Amount due from Consumer Legal Action Fund
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Subscriptions received in advance
Accounts payable and accrued charges
Provision for untaken leaves

Secured bank borrowing

Subventions received

Net current assets

Non-current liability
Secured bank borrowing

Representing:

Leasehold property control account
Equipment control account
Designated fund for approved projects
Accumulated surplus

NOTES

10

11
11
11
12

13

14
15

14

16
17
18

2014 2013
HKS$ HKS$
53,386,829 55,228,269

1,671,687 1,460,266
58,192 65,845
2,354,000 2,374,000
42,521,376 43,124,710
46,605,255 47,024,821
839,724 732,488
4,671,801 4,064,924
4,795,357 4,543,904
365,042 361,282
12,496,229 16,494,597
23,168,153 26,197,195
23,437,102 20,827,626
1,769,978 2,135,378
75,053,953 73,920,517
52,090,328 53,293,217
1,296,501 1,935,052
4,844,094 6,231,805
16,823,030 12,460,443
75,053,953 73,920,517

The financial statements on pages 3 to 21 were approved and authorised for issue by the members of

Consumer Council on 28 July 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

A
]

A i

>CHJEF EXECUT@
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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Designated
Leasehold Equipment fund for
property control approved Accumulated
control account account projects surplus Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
At 1 April 2012 54,044,335 2,537,420 6,898,316 10,305,033 73,785,104
Surplus for the year - - - 135,413 135,413
Current year addition 459,551 1,277,503 1,686,023 (3,423,077) -
Current year utilisation (1,210,669) (1,879,871) (2,352,534) 5,443,074 -
At 31 March 2013 53,293,217 1,935,052 6,231,805 12,460,443 73,920,517
Surplus for the year - - - 1,133,436 1,133,436
Current year addition 112,983 691,680 294,724 (1,099,387) -
Current year utilisation (1,315,872) (1,330,231)  (1,682,435) 4328,538 -
At 31 March 2014 52,090,328 1,296,501 4,844,094 16,823,030 75,053,953
-5-



CONSUMER COUNCIL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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Operating activities
Surplus for the year
Adjustments for:
Government subvention for addition of property, plant and
equipment
Interest expense
Depreciation for property, plant and equipment
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Increase in debtors, deposits and prepayments

Decrease (increase) in amount due from Consumer Legal
Action Fund

Increase in subscriptions received in advance

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued charges

Increase (decrease) in provision for untaken leaves

Cash generated from (used in) operations
Interest paid

Net cash from (used in) operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
New loans and advances to staff

Repayments of loans and advances from staff
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

Government subventions utilised for non-recurrent projects
Funds utilised for other non-recurrent projects

Repayment of bank borrowing

Funds received for other non-recurrent projects
Government subventions received for non-recurrent projects

Net cash (used in) from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
represented by bank balances and cash

2014 2013
HKS$ HKS$
1,133,436 135,413
(1,099,441) (1,385,724)

22,360 27,832
2,646,103 3,090,540
(335,291) (329,121)
2,367,167 1,538,940
(201,346) (24,303)
20,000 (327,000)
107,236 7,821
606,877 (1,831,685)
251,453 (71,634)
3,151,387 (707,861)
(22,360) (27,832)
3,129,027 (735,693)
(804,663) (1,737,054)
(160,392) (65,845)
168,045 269,712
325,216 326,348
(471,794) (1,206,839)
(5,485,218) (4,969,617)
(868,054) (510,526)
(361,640) (356,168)
863,954 933,767
2,590,391 6,326,398
(3,260,567) 1,423,854
(603,334) (518,678)
43,124,710 43,643,388
42,521,376 43,124,710
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

1. ORGANISATION AND ACTIVITIES

The Consumer Council (the "Council") is a body corporate with perpetual succession established
under the Consumer Council Ordinance 1977 (Chapter 216, Laws of Hong Kong) for the purpose
of protecting and promoting the interests of consumers of goods, immovable property and
services. It is mainly funded by Government subventions. The Council is also appointed as
trustee for the Consumer Legal Action Fund under a Deed of Trust for the purpose of offering
financial assistance to consumers in seeking legal redress, remedies and protection.

The address of both the registered office and principal place of operation of the Council is 22nd
Floor, K. Wah Centre, 191 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The Council is exempted from profits tax under the provision of section 87 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the functional
currency of the Council.

As the Council is a non-profit making organisation, an income and expenditure statement is
prepared to account for the results of its operation.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Council has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 and Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on these financial statements for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these financial statements.
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") - continued

The Council has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle?
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition
and HKFRS 7 Disclosures®
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities'
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and HKAS 38 and Amortisation*
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities'
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverlable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with earlier application

permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with certain exceptions.
Available for application - the mandatory effective date will be determined when the
outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

The Council's members anticipate that the application of the above new and revised HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the results and the financial position of the Council.
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services. The principal accounting policies
adopted are as follows:

Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales returns.

- Sales of "Choice" and other publications are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed.

- Sales of "Choice" on-line subscription are recognised when services are provided.

- Licence fee income for "Choice" on-line is recognised on a straight-line basis over the -
relevant licence term.

Interest income from a financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Council and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Government subventions

Government subventions for recurrent projects are recognised when funds are appropriated by the
Government.

Government subventions for non-recurrent projects are recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match with the related costs which are intended to compensate on a systematic basis.

Capital contribution

Contribution of cash and capital assets by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the "HKSAR") are accounted for as capital contribution and recognised in
the appropriate equity account.
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
other than buildings, less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
income and expenditure statement.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when
the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

Financial assets

The Council's financial assets are classified as loan and receivables. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective basis for debt instruments.

-10-
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued
Financial assets - continued
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including debtors, loans and advances to staff, amount due from the Consumer Legal Action
Fund and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through income or expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.

-11 -
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Financial instruments - continued
Financial liabilities - continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fee paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable and secured bank borrowing) are initially
measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Council derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Council neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Council continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in the income and expenditure statement.

The Council derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Council's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial

liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement.

-12-
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Council reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the income and
expenditure statement.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the income and expenditure statement.

Leasin,

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Council as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Council assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Council. The entire lease of the Council's land and building is classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

-13-
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the Council, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Council operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in income and expenditure statement in
the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in the income and expenditure statement in the period in which
they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Council is funded mainly by Government subventions. The Council members manage its

funds to ensure that the Council will be able to continue as a going concern. The Council's overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a. Categories of financial instruments
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash
equivalents) 45,195,045 45,909,446
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 5,812,441 5,776,039
-14 -
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

S. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Council's major financial instruments include debtors, loans and advances to staff,
amount due from the Consumer Legal Action Fund, bank balances and cash, accounts
payable and secured bank borrowing. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Council's members manage and
monitor these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Council has no significant concentration of credit risk on debtors, and loans and
advances to staff as the Council's members consider the amounts involved are
insignificant.

The credit risk on deposits at banks is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings.

The credit risk arising from default in the payment by the Consumer Legal Action Fund is
limited as the counterparty is financially capable.

Market risk
Foreign currency risk management

Certain transactions of the Council are denominated in currencies set out below which are
different from the functional currency of the Council, i.e. Hong Kong dollars, and
therefore the Council is exposed to foreign currency risk. The carrying amounts of the
Council's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
United States dollars 105,003 105,002 - 14,921
Euro 584,547 402,553 165,625 746,334
British Pound - - - 111,180

-15-
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CONSUMER COUNCIL

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies - continued
Market risk - continued
The following table indicates the approximate change in the Council's income and

expenditure in response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to
which the Council may have exposure at the end of the reporting period.

2014 2013
Increase Increase
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign Effect on in foreign Effect on
exchange income exchange income
rates (expenditure) rates (expenditure)
HKS$ HK$
United States dollars 3% 3,150 3% 2,702
(3%) (3,150) (3%) (2,702)
Euro 10% 41,892 10% (34,378)
(10%) (41,892) (10%) 34,378
British Pound N/A N/A 3% (3,336)
N/A N/A (3%) 3,336

In the opinion of the Council members, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Council's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. The Council's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its secured bank borrowing which bears interest at variable rates. The
Council has a policy to place surplus funds with creditable financial institutions which
offer the best rate on a short-term basis to facilitate the bank loan interest payment. The
Council's members continuously monitor the cash flow interest rate risk.

Liquidity risk

The Council is dependent on the government subventions. The Council members consider
that the Council is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as the Government would provide
subvention for the Council based on budgets prepared by the Council annually. The

Council members also closely monitor the Council's cash flow position.

Bank balances comprise of demanded deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less.

-16-
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies - continued

Liguidity risk - continued

Liquidity and interest rate table

Appendix 5 gk A

The following tables detail the Council's remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Council can be

required to pay.

Weighted
average Total
effective 6 months 6-12 1-5 Qver § undiscounted Carrying
interest rate o less months years years amounts
% HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$ HEKS$
2014
Accounts payable - 31677421 - - - 3,677,421 1,677421
Secured bank borrowing 0.96 192,000 192,000 1,536,000 275,208 2,195,208 2,135,020
3,869,421 192,000 1,536,000 275,208 5,872,629 5,812,441
Weighted
average Total
effective 6 months 6-12 1-5 Over 5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate or less months years years cash flows amounts
% HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$
2013
Accounts payable - 3,279,379 - - - 3279379 3,279,379
Secured bank borrowing 1.03 192,000 192,000 1,536,000 668,008 2,588,008 2,496,660
3,471,379 192,000 1,536,000 668,008 5,867,387 5,776,039

c. Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Council's members consider that the carrying values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their fair

values.

NON-RECURRENT PROJECTS SUBVENTION

Price surveillance project
Price Survey on diesel and gasoline

Consumer Council resources centre enhancement project

Strengthening consumer protection project
Enhancement of computer systems
Purchase of computer equipments

Unfair trade practice campaign

Other non-recurrent projects

2014
HKS$

2,435,794

871,444
246,000

9,188
309,718
105,047

2,134,741

1,340,780
7,452,712

2013
HKS

4,019,790
512,126
160,661

15,120
699,943
159,338

1,298,889
6,865,867

-17 -
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7.

10.

SALES OF "CHOICE" MAGAZINE

Appendix 5 « gk A

Income from sale of "Choice" magazine, after deduction of printing, artwork, postage and
promotion cost amounts to HK$404,595 (2013: HK$392,357).

STAFF COSTS

Staff costs include an amount of HK$6,855,609 (2013: HK$6,773,239) in respect of contributions
to retirement benefits scheme.

NON-RECURRENT PROJECTS EXPENSES

Price surveillance project
Unfair trade practice campaign

Consumer Council resources centre enhancement project

Price survey on diesel and gasoline

Other projects

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST
At 1 April 2012
Additions

At 31 March 2013
Additions

At 31 March 2014

DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2012
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2013
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2014

CARRYING VALUES

At 31 March 2014

At 31 March 2013

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
2,435,794 4,019,790
2,134,741 -
246,000 160,661
868,054 514,115
668,682 789,165
6,353,271 5,483,731
Leaschold
land and
building in
Hong Kong Furniture
under long-term  Leasehold Office Computer and Motor
lease improvement  equipment cquipment  fixtures vehicle Total
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
62,638,435 7,473,251 1,744,660 10,054,938 738,062 247,291 82,896,637
- 459,551 28,736 1,124,533 124,234 - 1,737,054
62,638,435 7,932,802 1,773,396 11,179,471 862,296 247,291 84,633,691
- 112,983 338,371 306,567 46,742 - 804,663
62,638,435 8,045,785 2,111,767 11,486,038 909,038 247,291 85,438,354
10,063,502 6,003,850 1,498,325 1,872,272 629,642 247,291 26,314,382
875,972 334,697 193,633 1,617,868 68,370 - 3,090,540
10,939,474 6,338,547 1,691,958 9,490,140 698,012 247,291 29,405,422
875,971 439,901 169,206 1,070,893 90,132 - 2,646,103
11,815,445 6,778,448 1,861,164 10,561,033 788,144 247,291 32,051,525
50,822,990 1,267,337 250,603 925,005 120,894 53,386,829
51,698,961 1,594,255 81,438 1,689,331 164,284 - 55,228,269
-18-

95



Appendix 5 gk A

CONSUMER COUNCIL

10.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated over their useful lives using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the remaining term of the leases

Buildings Over the shorter of their useful lives or the
remaining term of the lease of land

Leaschold improvement 20%

Office equipment 33.33%

Computer equipment 33.33%

Furniture and fixtures 33.33%

Motor vehicle 33.33%

Leaschold properties with carrying value of HK$13,147,396 (2013: HK$13,259,238) are under
mortgage to secure the bank loan of the Council. All the leasehold properties are under second
mortgage in favour of the Government.

11.  OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Other financial assets included debtors, loans and advances to staff and management fee
receivable from Consumer Legal Action Fund. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free.
Except for the loans and advances to staff which will be settled by twelve monthly instalments,
other amounts are repayable on demand.

12.  BANK BALANCES AND CASH
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less and carry interest at market rates which ranged from 0.8% to 1.2% (2013: 0.11%
to 0.58%) per annum.

13.  ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED CHARGES
Accounts payable are unsecured, interest-free and repayable according to the respective credit

terms. The Council has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
paid within the credit timeframe.

-19-
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14. SECURED BANK BORROWING

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
Carrying amount repayable:
On demand or within one year 365,042 361,282
More than one year, but not exceeding two years 368,574 364,819
More than two years but not more than five years 1,127,258 1,116,021
More than five years 274,146 654,538
2,135,020 2,496,660
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under
current liabilities (365,042) (361,282)
1,769,978 2,135,378

The loan which is secured by the Council's properties with carrying value of HK$13,147,396
(2013: HK$13,259,238) bears interest at the lower of prime rate or 0.75% over the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate and will be repayable by monthly instalments, the last of which falls due in
December 2019. The proceeds were used to finance the acquisition of a leasehold property.

15. SUBVENTIONS RECEIVED

2014 2013
HKS$ HK$
Subventions unexpended at the end of the reporting period for

designated non-recurrent projects:
Price surveillance project 221,165 1,916,208
Price survey on diesel and gasoline 1,849,509 1,858,207
Strengthening consumer protection project 797,090 806,278
35th anniversary activities 323,009 323,009
Enhancement of computer systems 2,708,288 3,023,371
Complaints interactive computer system - 309,718
Unfair trade practice campaign - 980,000
Consumer Council resource centre:

leasehold improvement 256,244 256,244

enhancement project 48,899 -

air-conditioning system 46,000 101,200
Replacement of computers - 25,800
Removal of storage devices - 18,890
Office of the Communications Authority online price survey - 7,491
Training program 1,025,408 1,306,512
Revamp of shopsmart website - 270,000
Conference room refurbishment 544,000 748,000
Digitalisation of "Choice" magazine 73,333 128,333
Accomplishing sever virtualisation 1,600,000 1,600,000
Choice of tablet computer 550,000 550,000
Other projects 2,453,284 2,265,336

12,496,229 16,494,597

-20-



Appendix 5 gk A

CONSUMER COUNCIL

16.

18.

19.

20.

LEASEHOLD PROPERTY CONTROL ACCOUNT

The amount arises from capital contribution by the Government for the acquisition of leasehold
properties and appropriation from general fund for subsequent purchase of capital assets reduced
by depreciation of the related assets.

EQUIPMENT CONTROL ACCOUNT

The amount was appropriated from general fund in previous years for the acquisition of office
equipment, computer equipment and furniture and fixtures and is reduced by depreciation of the
related assets.

DESIGNATED FUND FOR APPROVED PROJECTS

The amount represents funds for current projects appropriated for the below designated activities
not yet incurred by the end of the reporting period:

2014 2013

HK$ HKS$
Online "Choice" operation reserve 4,300,344 4,300,344
Office equipment and maintenance 249,026 249,026
Testing and research 294,724 1,682,435

4,844,094 6,231,805

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

At the end of the reporting period, the Council had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall due
within one year and two to five years amounting to HK$767,428 and HK$480,947, respectively
(2013: HK$358,513 and nil).

Leases are negotiated for a term ranging from one to two years, with fixed rental over the terms of
the leases.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The Council recharged a fee of HK$2,354,000 (2013: HK$2,374,000) for administrative service
and office support (comprising salary costs and attributable overhead) provided to the Consumer
Legal Action Fund (the "Funds") during the year. The recharge is in accordance with the
provision of the Trust Deed governing the Funds and approved by both the Council and the Board
of Administrators of the Funds.
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94,537,000 85,885,000
7,452,712 6,865,867
2,071,899 1,920,658
2,354,000 2,374,000
335,291 329,121
164.918 270,903
106915820  97.645.549
77,074272 74,574,245
5,560,756 5,091,688
6,353,271 5,483,731
2,646,103 3,090,540
1,511,638 966,467
3,040,754 2,704,895
148,500 142,000
566,909 472,610
356,369 343,228
53,000 48,000
22,360 27,832
430,471 312,584
1,667,304 1,528,302
1,465,950 437,473
4.884.727 2.286.541
105,782,384 97,510,136
1,133.436 135,413
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52,090,328 1,296,501 4,844,094 16,823,030 75,053,953
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Appendix 6 * fff#%7<

Contact Information of :
Consumer Advice Centres
SBEEBATPONEEER

Hotline Centre JHEE&RERELF : 2929 2222

Fax {EE5%HE : 2590 6271
Website #8uf : www.consumer.org.hk
E-mail EESHLE : cc@consumer.org.hk

Hong Kong FERE New Territories ¥5L &

North Point Consumer Advice Centre
Room 1410, 14/F, Kodak House II

39 Healthy Street East

North Point

L AEEEEAHD
bA R A3 E AN E _#i14181410%

Kowloon 1 EEE

Shamshuipo Consumer Advice Centre
G/F, Cheung Sha Wan Government Offices

303 Cheung Sha Wan Road

R EEARD
RIVEBE303RRDEBITEELT

Tsimshatsui Consumer Advice Centre
G/F, Consumer Council Resource Centre

3 Ashley Road

Tsimshatsui

/7]&/}\ E§ nﬁ., I:P’ L
SN T T [EFE35R
SHEEREERHOMT

Wong Tai Sin Consumer Advice Centre
Unit 201, 2/F, Lung Cheung Office Block

138 Lung Cheung Road

Wong Tai Sin

EANFHRD

EAUFEREL385E EEAMARE2E201E

Shatin Consumer Advice Centre
Room 442, 4/F, Shatin Government Offices
1 Sheung Wo Che Road

Shatin

59EE a0 n@ EF"L?
WHERERIGFOHBITEE4ELRE

Tsuen Wan Consumer Advice Centre
Room 105, 1/F, Princess Alexandra Community Centre
60 Tai Ho Road

Tsuen Wan

ZEERERRD
ZE SO 605 HEE AL @ AR O\ 18105

Yuen Long Consumer Advice Centre
G/F, Yuen Long District Office Building

269 Castle Peak Road

Yuen Long

TLBREAREAHID
TUEASILAE2695 TTER RBE B E RN EH T
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Trader Named by -
Consumer Council in 2013-14
2013- 14 FEBWAS LA ARG

Carefree Travel (HK) Limited
EiEnE (F#8) BRAR

Unit 1515, 15/F,, Peninsula Tower, 538 Castle Peak Road, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
NEEH A AABIES38R B REISHELI515F

The travel club was alleged for persistent failures in honouring its offer of free hotel accommodation to club
members. A total of 75 complaints were received, involving HK$564,000.

ZIRBSHENRURE DR FEERE NS EREESE  ERRELIBAGE ASREETSREFR SAEREE
#564,0007T °

123



Product TestingR

1. ELECTRICAL & ELECTRONIC GOODS
ERNETFESR

32" TVs - Performance Test 3205 4R #x4 BE A5

Air Conditioners /5 & i

AV Amplifiers B 5B S8

Christmas Decorative Lights B2 /& &

Dehumidifiers ;21

Electric Food Processors BB R YR

Electric Hot Water Pots 2K

Electric Kettles &K%

Electric Shavers EZ& * [1]

Electric Heaters EiE/E

Espresso Coffee Makers 432Nk

Halogen Ovens, Air Fryers and Convection Ovens

KR IE /R IESR /N RIE

Juicers and Blenders ¥ 1% K i8R 14

Mobile Phone Handsets (3 updates, total 66

models) F# (HiFR3R H66/EEL5E) * [3]

Printers ¥JE#

Range Hoods 35/

Refrigerators E1E

Rice Cookers BN

Tablet PCs AR * [1]

TVs - Safety Test AR 28I

Warm Air Clothes Dryers $& @ =&, 7K 22

Washing Machines %7 i

2. PHOTOGRAPHIC EQUIPMENT &
SOFTWARE &5/ 28 M &# {4+

® Camcorders &k * [1]

® Cameras (3 updates, total 67 models) #8#% (H ik
3R FHETEALSR) * [3]

® Internet Security Software #f8_-{R 2t

Appendix 8 * ffi4%/\

eports

B R

3.FOOD & HEALTH FOOD PRODUCTS

B ERERS

® Caffeine in Coffee and Milk Tea BNIEEHZAIHN
WA &£ * [1]

® GM Corn Ingredients in Corn and Corn-Based
Foods SEARMIEAKERYM T BEREKUE | TR

® Heavy Metal Levels in Rice R KHNELBESE

® Honey B% * [1]

® Nutrition Labels £ &1Z%;

4. PERSONAL PRODUCTS 1&E A A&
® Condoms Z&E *[1]
® Home-use Electronic Blood Pressure Monitors

KEETIIEGT * [1]

5.HOUSEHOLD PRODUCTS
KEEFH
® Glass-Top Dining Tables and Coffee Tables 3%
BERNR/L
® Household Gloves REFE
® Single Mattresses B A /K15
® Toilet Rolls EIff

6. AUTOMOBILE & CYCLING
PRODUCTS ;55 REHEHS

® Child Car Seats RERELZER

7. OTHERS Hifth
® Children's Plastic Footwear 2 E B &t
® Cigarettes &/&
e Toys It&

*  Published in CHOICE magazine and on Shopsmart website

TR CRE) ATIR "EIEEE B B
[ ] FEIRETR RIPHEDEE  MHubTIEAIRE
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Product Indepth Studies and
Market Survey Reports
Emf R AT RAERE

Various Studies and Reports Z38% &

Drugs for Athletes' Foot and Nail Fungus Y3282 I K Ik FRAVZEY)
Ceramic Knives EFRMEE J]

® Tumble Dryers RRETE N

® Coffee ik

® Common Eye Diseases of Elderly People K& & R

® Drugs for Canker Sores BE#Z4)

® Fish Maw {Ei2

® Cooking with Halogen Ovens and Convection Ovens - Health Concerns JEE 1B MR IER B REERENRE
® Health Related Claims of Juicers and Blenders 831 K ¥ T4 A0 (2 BEAD I 2 75

® Home-use Facial Steamers, Electric Face Brushers, and Ion Beauty Devices ZXEI#/ /0 R/ B T2 R 1
® Home-use LED Facial Devices ZRFILED/ B R

® Home-use RF Facial Devices ZRF514EE A 1

® LED Light Bulbs LED/E /&

® Rotavirus Vaccine EikmS&E E

® Smart TVs FEEE G

® Surgical Masks NI E
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Surveys and
Service Study Reports
BE N RS R RE

\]

Market Surveys / Opinion Surveys / Price Surveys

hizaas / BERIABE / BIEHREE

® After-sales Service on Washing Machines/Wash Dryers JAXi#/ /X 87 X E & RFS
® Annual Supermarket Price Survey FERHEKAE

® Credit Card Charges {SFEINE

® Investment-Linked Assurance Schemes & &R B =R EIFE

® Personal Loan Services and Sales Practices of Loan Intermediary #\ AEFETEI R EFHANATREETFE
® Opinion Survey on Residential Broadband Services (X EE AR E RAT

® Personal Data Privacy on Instant Messaging Apps ENFF @& - 8 A BRIFLE

® Market Survey on Residential Broadband Service Plans St B2 3E X ¥ S 4 AR IS T2
® Rice Prices BKE

® Safe Deposit Box Services {RE 8 IR7%5

® Tax Loans & &T2|

® Textbook Expenditure Survey BEEZ&HE

® Textbook Price Survey #RIEEKHEE

® Textbook Revision Survey #HRIEHIRFEE

® Travel Insurance on High-Risk Activities iR #R 51812 =@ B RS RE

Indepth Studies JF A

® Breakdown of Online Securities Trading System #8 =535 5 R it &
® Green Tips for Reduction of Waste on Festive Occasions A EIHEE
® Liberalization of Fresh Beef Market FBUE4FA DTS

® Life Insurance Policy Replacement AZ{REZER

® Mandatory Window Inspection Scheme 5|58 % 512!

® Online Booking of Hotels #§_-T85T5H/E

® Online Dating Services #f_t 88 SACH RS

® Pet Cremation Services SEY)Z 1 IRHS

® The Vehicle Maintenance Workshops Charter "E##EE 5= | 52

126



Appendix 11 « fif#k+—

Consultation Papers Responded to by

the Council (2013-14
[O] FE S8 5 44

® United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD) — United Nations Guidelines for
Consumer Protection (1985 — 2013)

HEREZ LB EREE - BORREEEE2ER] (1985 - 2013) (2013-04-05)

® Environmental Protection Department - New Producer Responsibility Scheme on Glass Beverage Bottles
REREE - (RREBELEEEETFED (2013-05-14)

® Legislative Council Bills Committee — Stamp Duty (Amendment) Bill 2013
MESIEREZESR - (013FEERIERDERAIESR) (2013-06-03)

® Hong Kong Monetary Authority - The Proposed Regulatory Regime for Stored Value Facilities and Retail
Payment System in Hong Kong
EREHEHER - RMEXNERNTEXNRFNEZRERFIE (2013-06-13)

® Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau - Legislative Proposals on Improvement of Corporate Insolvency
Law M IESBREBR - BCARKEENILEZEZ (2013-07-15)

® Pharmacy and Poisons Board Hong Kong - Draft Code of Practice for Listed Seller of Poisons
BEBERXLSEERR - JNSEHERARXT - EEEA (2013-07-29)

® Securities and Futures Commission - Proposed Amendments to the Professional Investor Regime and the
Client Agreement Requirements
EHNPEEBEREZEE - BRE BEXREEHFHENEFBEMRE (2013-08-23)

® Legislative Council Bills Committee - Toys and Children's Products Safety (Amendment) Bill 2013
MEEEREES - QOLB3FNAMREERR2(ERNEAER) (2013-11-05)

® Legislative Council Panel on Health Services - Legislative Proposals to Enhance the Regulation of
Pharmaceutical Products
MESEAERHBERES - (NRREEBERRMIIDEEZ) (2013-12-03)

® Land Registry - the Revised Proposal of Two Stage Conversion Mechanism
TR - MR ERE R BIRVE G2 F = (2013-12-05)

® Legislative Council Panel on Health Services - Regulation of Medical Beauty Treatments or Procedures
VEEHEEBERES - HE T HEXDAENERF, (2013-12-16)

® Communications Authority - Application for Prior Consent Under Section 7P of the Telecommunications
Ordinance in Respect of the Proposed Acquisition of CSL New World Mobility Limited and HKT Limited

EBNEEEER - 8B ERARMEZNEE CSL New World Mobility Limited 1% (BB S5 7PIEES
E4HFE (2014-01-21)
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13th Consumer Rights Reporting Awards
List of Adjudicators
FBT=fE UHERERNERER ) fTHI AR

Dr. Francis Lee, Associate Professor, School of Journalism and Communication, The Chinese University of Hong
Kong

BRPXAENERERERRIHRT =G

Mr. Lau Chi-kuen, Principal Lecturer, Department of Journalism, School of Communication, Hong Kong Baptist
University

BRREREEEEG AL RIS EELE

Ms. Sham Yee-lan, Executive Member, Hong Kong Journalists Association

BRLEBIMIRESARLL

Ms. Zoe Hung, Executive Member, Hong Kong Journalists Association

BRLEBIAMIREAN DAL

Mr. Joe Lam, Chairman, Hong Kong Press Photographers Association

BREELE B EEMIRRSELE

Mr. Eddy Chung, Vice Chairman, Hong Kong Press Photographers Association
EEBER e HIRERELXNLE

Mr. Ambrose Ho, Vice Chairman, Consumer Council

HEERE SR T REMMHRELE



Winning Entries of the :
13th Consumer Rights Reporting Awards

Br=E FEEnfERER , FRRE

Category: News #H7! : ¥

Appendix 13 « fii#k+=

ory: Television Features 5! : ETf4FE

Gold | sheistpss A ShIN(E .
Aéwa%rd B A 2 EARERR
Silver | ABEEDBRMLE HATHIMI50TT
Award | BEERETEIT 3BEMN — BA%R
BE | e e wRE
(R (CRBHNBESH R
Bronze | grEsgL
e | ARAME mEpRE AR
REY
Merit | 2 nprasris AL
— 8
me | e wEn e i
Merit | sgesseocprin® e 2 EUE e
o | g i MER AR

ory: Features #273 : 455

e o SREEERAT
e | msmREsmEnEe RREEBRAR
Silver ™~ 2y
Award INMEAER _mama
spus | FEHAL
Bronze | sasmepsaeos
avard | L — B
s | EAREE RS
Bronze A%
Award PERRER: — BEER
spee | EHU

ory: Radio News 07! : & & #iE
Gold Srh S A
Avard | 0 CF — EHEL
PN e
Silver ™
Avara | 0 — B84
spue | ERE
Bronze e
Award %%DEHL\%%H . %;‘%%/ﬁ\
spee | BRAUIE

ory: Radio Features 05 : ELHFES

Gold | Astspy(Eie i iz s .
et | A sp wa 2R
Siver | BSIBBEIE LIESEA
Award | BEEREERE — =ET
BE | gy men
Bronze NET s
Award ﬁﬁ@%{ﬂ E':E%  EEER
e el 5T
Merit : Syl
Avarg | L AR — A
mr | FB=X
Merit | zogopaps =5

— B
e | s s B

> Az /_I

gwér d ﬁﬁﬁﬁ{#% 1T _ muma

/7x P
Silver | sus g EstFS|

YU =X Al7R RSN
b | mmE AEs EE FERS
Bronze N9 BEES D
Award %ﬁi e — BB8E
i R

ory: Television News #H5!: EiR#E

ory: Press Photos #7! : &S

Gold 7o G B 2 D i Al TE S

Award H?%%xﬁ?&ﬁ%/ﬁ — Now¥fEa

448 %

Siver | RIBRITHBIIERE

Award | EfREIBAEREE — Now#E&

BE | e

Bronze e

Award | 2522 — BAREERAT
s | HERE

Gold BARRIEEFE
Award | BIEEAGREEED SIS — ABKERR
EL I e
Silver : . i«
Award Fﬁl\)f;‘ﬂ\:‘ﬁﬁ’ﬂ)%*%ﬁi WwEABEOKER ERAHR
@i | UK
Bronze | 15

;E__§7J<E§ o=
gﬂwa%rd STEE 25k
Merit = EE i
Award _T}\{EME%E — BERERR
BR sRIKEE
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Poll Results of
Top Ten Consumer News (Year of the Snake)
ETORENE L EEER

1. Government implements export control on powdered formula to ensure priority for Hong Kong parents
"k ) BB BUNHERS R DBABYD, (3,337%)
2. 15 medical beauty treatments under new requirements to be performed by medical practitioners only
REBBXRISAXDEF REBERE (2,572%)

3. Legislators called for refund for Octopus cardholders who had been overcharged

NEBEFZIR REFREmERE (2,563%)
4. Trade Descriptions Ordinance (TDO) amended and extended to regulate the service industry
BT (MR IRA) HIE REBXWRE IREEERE (2,428E)

5. No more “false and misleading” sales tactics with Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance came
into effect and establishment of the regulator

—FREEFROILER IRRE HER AAIKE (2,362%)

6. Cheung Kong cancelled sale of Horizon Hotel apartments after Securities & Futures Commission (SFC)
stepped in
ERIRK BEESNAN REBRXSZIMETR (2,257Z

7. Quality of Chinese herbal turtle jelly (Gui Ling Gao) at issue
ESERERK (2,019%)

8. Hot air balloon tragedy in Egypt unveiled high risk activities not covered in travel insurance
BRARKBE BIRERALRESCES (1,910Z

9. CLP reiterates that free increase is inevitable
INSEEIN HBRFINEE R (1,881EF)

10. Communications Authority penalized Television Broadcasts Limited for violating competition by
monopolizing the industry

ERSE Sk (1,835%
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Winners of the Consumer Culture
Study Award XV(2013-14)

EThHE

Junior Division ##k#8

BEXEER

B GE 25

Award 5218 Topic £ zEH School &%
. N Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College
=
Winner BE CEEZ T I,
J—— Carmel Secondary School
Second T2 (ZHmEXERE) i
Our Lady's Coll
(TR ) e
ThirdEE ===

(s - 2B RL)

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
FrENen LS ERMcaTE

Distinguished Award
BEHEMREE

(Gvariia=1=p)

Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College
FESERIG S AT RHE

(K, 7E)

Madam Lau Kam Lung Secondary School of
Miu Fat Buddhist Monastery
WEFBIERERE

(mENEE)

Raimondi College

BEHER

The Best Topic Award

(s - e R

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College

REEEBE HANEH LEG SR aHhE
(TR, B gg;;%/'s College

%;;%;;;gthe Best Topic Award (CEE>T4) g%g;%lg;;;;;cmn Memorial College
CEfEsEE) S

;;;;;gn Award (BREEREE) ;CAuaﬂgq:;econdary School

Senior Division S#kH

Award 2218 Topic EZzEH School B#%
. South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School
JiEs NAT ?
Winner BE (R ALY T
Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College
Second 28 (REEs) BRSPS

Third £E

(Gl =E)

Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College
SEERImSLETE

Distinguished Award

(ASERE G5RBK7)

Queen Elizabeth School

RS FRIMEHS
The Best Topic Award <, ) South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School
o (CFR& HETFA?) S

Merit for the Best Topic Award
BEERE

CBNEENIED

Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College
EEERE S ACETE

(R RAT BRI

St. Paul's College
ERESR

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College

N
(REEERINE) Famen T e LRRee s

Special Commended Award- DMHC Siu Ming Catholic Secondary School

Effective Evidence Finding Design (RZEER) J Y

WBIEANIE - SBEE AR

REZBESHRTE

131



132

Outstanding Project Award #E/MESEE
Junior Division #J#&#8
Topic Z%REH

Appendix 15 « [ +H

School 4%

Ju Ching Chu Secondary School (Yuen Long)

(FAEER LIPS (7T8)
DN Carmel Secondary School
(BEEE) ——

(32 = =|)

Madam Lau Kam Lung Secondary School of Miu Fat Buddhist Monastery
AT BB RERE

CFRAIAY "HiEsE L BED

Senior Division =#§#8

Topic Z%REH

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
FENeR LESERMicaTE

School 4%

Wa Ying College

CETigmAE?) —
() Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College
T

SEERmS QTR

Commended Project Award Z5F{EqLEE

Junior Division #J#§#8
Topic EZEzEH

{ Dream Cream )

School E:#%

Buddhist Tai Hung College
BRHORIERE

T/, T RIEY

CUHK Federation of Alumni Associations Thomas Cheung Secondary School

BERPXABERREHEREETSE

(ZARRT | ZERIE?)

The Church of Christ in China Ming Yin College
PEEERGHETR

Carmel Secondary School

(Ef383k CCC?) szRrhes
ETET) HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College

Senior Division =#k#8
Topic E%&EH
(TE 1haE)

HENEH TESERIMic SRR

School 2#%

Fukien Secondary School

R ()

(EESE 8, 7)

The Hong Kong Chinese Women's Club
Fung Yiu King Memorial Secondary School

BEREPRRELSEERICSHRE

(EhaEE! 7)

Carmel Pak U Secondary School
MR

(DEHEZIRD

Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College
FEERn S ieaPR

(&%E—B)

St. Paul's School (Lam Tin)
EEHERIEER

CEEE MBS 7)

SKH Chan Young Secondary School
EUNL G

(DLPRZEERERIEE)

DMHC Siu Ming Catholic Secondary School
REZBESEPTEL

(Emi OK 15 ?7)

South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School

MBI hEE

GH "R E?)

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College
v =T i el
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Special Mention Award 435I%

Junior Division #J#&#8

22

Topic EZzEH School £#%
( MREBERZAMRE) Tseung Kwan O Government Secondary School &R B2
€ FAPIROFRED Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College ZE 22 fiarhE
( EAHFEY Maryknoll Convent School (Secondary Section) &R 35 {& B 27 (FRE2ER)
€ pRInZ2ZE7) St. Paul's Secondary School E2{R#EHE2

( ESHERESE)

Senior Division =#§#8
Topic R gEH
(EREERR? 1)

HKBU Affiliated School Wong Kam Fai Secondary School &#i= @ REHEER T isgrhe

School 4%

Shun Tak Fraternal Association Cheng Yu Tung Secondary School |[Bf2BEfE S E AL HE

CHERE "R TR D

Caritas Chai Wan Marden Foundation Secondary School FBE 4/ E & HprZ

(FE5 M, B8, )

The Church of Christ in China Fong Yun Wah Secondary School FR#EEE# <& 5 HEHRE

(EETOIRE = ¥EKIEM 7)

St. Paul's School (Lam Tin) EHEFiEAHE

CHULTE - T8RLE 7 )

St. Stephen's Church College B2 +12 7 &2

(BELHERE - HHBEBRR)

DMHC Siu Ming Catholic Secondary School XK E#EHA @ FAFHE

(B EREME)

South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School EHEFIEIZHE

(i LEREIT AL EHERAIRE)

Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Mrs. Wu York Yu Memorial College BREE=Fr R BIR AfSSrRE

(=¥

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College F# IS/ T g &fic&pE

(FB1E=)

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College F# M e T A2 sl e

Special Mention (Topic) Award 45BIE T (3258 ) 5%

Junior Division #J#§#8

Topic EZ&EH School &4
CHEREH - 2B Carmel Pak U Secondary School & HHFHHES
Utz 7) Carmel Secondary School & rhea
(UEA L REE ™) Christian Alliance S C Chan Memorial College S & BRER:2 fio a2
(GEREEERE?) DMHC Siu Ming Catholic Secondary School KE##EHA & # AR
(LU %) HKBU Affiliated School Wong Kam Fai Secondary School &iia@ AEFBER T 8B

(g - =)
Senior Division S#k#H

Topic ZZzEH
(IR AT HERIANTRHEER)

HKSYC & IA Wong Tai Shan Memorial College Z#UEr T @ EMic e

School 4%

St. Stephen's Girls College B3+32 [ 25122

(REHNE HARERBE?)

Wa Ying College ZFEH I

(BH E—1REt - EitHESE)

SKH Chan Young Secondary School B2/A & R zAE2

CRZIHERE - RAILIERIRR7)

SKH Chan Young Secondary School 2/ A& R ghrhES

(ERMPIREEE)

DMHC Siu Ming Catholic Secondary School X F# A& FERIhE
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Anniversary Award EF{CSHE

Appendix 15 * fii#+F

Teacher 158&RT School 245
FREEZEM Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College #2& El4) &2
SRS5AZRM Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College #2 & EI4)E2
[EIEHZEM Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College #:# & BAHE
RRREAM Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College % & B4HE
Mr{m IEZET Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College #f#i& B4
Bk ZEm Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College #h# &= B4
TEMEED Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College fh# &= B4
RS Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College $h# & B4
1SL55ERm Buddhist Wong Fung Ling College i & B4

PR 22 Z B Caritas St. Joseph Secondary School BAEFEL B A&

S2 R EEAM Caritas St. Joseph Secondary School B B2 B rh e
EEREAD Caritas St. Joseph Secondary School B B2 rhE2
EBATERD The Church of Christ in China Kei San Secondary School FIZEEE & E FihE
Wak:oi-C =il Delia Memorial School (Yuet Wah) it FZe &2z S22k (B EE)
EBIREL Diocesan Girls' School %%z &=k
RIS EET Hotung Secondary School fAIsRAE
PEEERD Lok Sin Tong Ku Chiu Man Secondary School #4822

Anniversary Award [E A28

Teacher 5 8EEM School &
[FESEA] Precious Blood Secondary School Z il 225 HE
FEEEA South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School FFTEPIEIZFHEE
EIREGEEM South Tuen Mun Government Secondary School FgTEPIE I7FHE2
RGBT Tung Wah Group of Hospitals Yow Kam Yuen College BREE=FR B THE
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Winners of the Third Age Persons

Consumer Culture Study Award 1V (2013-14)

FHEF=REEX T RRERGRLE

Award #2185

Gold Award
i

Topic EZzEH

«THRA008 ) BT ERAE>

Organization ¥tg

The Evangelical Lutheran Church of Hong Kong Ma On Shan
District Elderly Community Centre
EBHEEEESRERIUIREMERD

The Hong Kong Society for the Blind Rehabilitation Centre

<HEREH> N N
’ EAEABTEERTL

- = Tsung Tsin Mission of Hong Kong Full Life Centre
BRI EEALE o 979

EEHEBRESNERM

The Best Topic Award
BnEms

GBEFIBET  HMEBRHPHBRN -
IS AE>

Pok Oi Hospital Mrs. Wong Tung Yuen District Elderly
Community Centre

BEERIRRRAREMER L

Distinguished Award

== e E I

The Family Planning Association of Hong Kong Lam Tin
Women's Club

EREREFEIEESSEARLE

Special Mention Award

HRIERTE

PR E R
. . The Hong Kong Society for the Blind Rehabilitation Centre
BAIHVETTRE A e | N
7 BEEABESERTO
Merit The Hong Kong Society for the Blind Rehabilitation Centre
BREREBRIE NN .
ERMRE R EEEABTSERTL
N , . The Hong Kong Society for the Blind Rehabilitation Centre
BFE T R i i e
Merit for the Best Topic Award BEARSEREREHL
LR RS The Hong Kong Society for the Blind Rehabilitation Centre
«IERHY = » [T N p N
e EEEARERERTL
The Hong Kong Society for the Aged Senior Council
ERREEE>
: EFERETRES
Pok Oi Hospital Mr. Kwok Hing Kwan Neighbourhood Elderly
«:ﬁﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ]’l» Centre

BEERBEMRELETO

SKEET BEFFSR>

S.K.H. Holy Carpenter Church District Elderly Community Centre
BERGREFEREMETL

The Hong Kong Association of Senior Citizens

Special Mention (Topic) Award
HRIEEF (&) 88

GRIMARE?» .

EEREBS

Pok Oi Hospital Mr. Kwok Hing Kwan Neighbourhood Elderly
« TR S » Centre

BERERLEBRELETO

SREEMIS-BRR

Monitoring Alliance on Elderly Policies — Alliance Buddies

REBOR BRI 2Bt K

«EFBER?
- KEEHIOEE >

The Evangelical Lutheran Church of Hong Kong Chung On
Neighbourhood Elderly Centre
EEHEBEERERRERLSHL
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Appendix 17 « [t #&+t

A List of External Committees
Attended by Council Members and Staff

AEEENBESENIREED

CLP Power - Customer Consultative Group

REBNBRAR - BFHERNE

Competition Commission

BPEBRES

Competition Policy Advisory Group

BPBRBARES

Department of Health - Pharmacy and Poisons (Listed Sellers of Poisons) Committee

WAEE - ERXERBE CIRSEHEER) Z8S

Department of Health - Taskforce on Hong Kong Code of Marketing of Breastmilk Substitutes

BEE - BEEIRARHEETIER/NE

Department of Health - Working Group on Differentiation between Medical Procedures and Beauty Services under the Steering Committee on Review of
Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities

BEE - WEBERBRERNEERERE TENBEEFAEARBIENE

Department of Justice - Costs Committee

BYA - FBERER

Department of Justice - Public Education and Publicity Sub-committee

BYA - ARBEREENERES

Department of Justice - Steering Committee on Mediation

BRI - AEIENME

Department of Justice - Working Group on Class Actions

BRI - SRR TE/NE

Education Bureau - Steering Committee on Selection, Quality Assurance and Review for the E-Textbook Market Development Scheme
HER - BTN EN SRR EHEE ERRENREERES

Electrical & Mechanical Services Department - Appeal Board Panel (Electricity Ordinance CAP 406)

WETRE - LREESEBNEMABENETRE)

Electrical & Mechanical Services Department - Appeal Board Panel under Energy Efficiency (Labelling of Products) Ordinance Cap 598
BEIRE - LHFEESHERURERTRKRHIEAENTN\E

Electrical & Mechanical Services Department - Disciplinary Tribunal Panel (Electricity) under the Electricity Ordinance (Cap. 406)
WEBTRE - REHERESENRIBNATAE)

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Electrical Safety Advisory Committee
HETRE - BRXEEAERES

Electrical & Mechanical Services Department - Lift and Escalator Safety Advisory Committee

HETRE - ARELEBRER2EARES

Electrical & Mechanical Services Department - Task Force on the Mandatory Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme
HBITRRE - MHIMEERM AR B8 TENE

Electrical & Mechanical Services Department - Task Force on the Voluntary Energy Efficiency Labelling Scheme
HBITRRE - BEMERMSERREI TR

Electrical and Mechanical Services Department - Working Group on Matters Relating to Responsible Persons
HEIRE - BEAFEIENME

Estate Agents Authority

MEREEER

Estate Agents Authority — Finance and Strategic Development Committee

HMERBEER - WBARBBEREESS®

Estate Agents Authority - Licensing Committee

HWERBEER - MBRER

Estate Agents Authority - Practice and Examination Committee

HMERBEER - WEXREAZES

Food and Environmental Hygiene Department, Centre for Food Safety - Task Force on Nutrition Labelling Education
BVBRSELE, AYR2P0 - ERREXRF LA

Food and Health Bureau - Committee on Improving Supply Chain of Powdered Formula
BRUNELR - BABHERRES

Food and Health Bureau - Expert Committee on Food Safety

BURELR - RNRE2ERRES

Food and Health Bureau - Health and Medical Development Advisory Committee - Working Group on Primary Care
BYRELR - EREBFEEREANES S - AEEFEEETENME

Food and Health Bureau - Sub-group on Publicity and Communication of Working Group on Primary Care
BYRELR - REEEEE TN - SERENFENE

Food and Health Bureau - Task Force on Primary Care Delivery Models of Working Group on Primary Care
RURELR - EEBERRBENFE/E

Food and Health Bureau - Working Group on Legal, Privacy & Security Issues of the Steering Committee on eHealth Record Sharing
BYRELR - EFRECHOBEERES - 28 AR RRLMEIENME

Food and Health Bureau - Working Group on Regulation of Private Hospitals
RYEEER - REXBRAESFE THENE

Home Affairs Department - Sub-committee on Property Management Companies

REEBIRE - WXEBQAR/NMIEES
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Home Affairs Department - Sub-committee on Property Management Practitioners

RBEBHEE - WEEENES/MIRESR

Hong Kong Accreditation Service — Task Force on Accreditation of Consumer Product Certification Bodies
BB - HE RBERER T3 EENE

Hong Kong Accreditation Service — Users of HKAS Accredited Services Liaison Group
BRI - BRIRBAPEHE

Hong Kong Accreditation Service — Working Party for Accreditation of Certification Bodies

BB - BEEER TS TN

Hong Kong Accreditation Service- Working Party for Physical and Mechanical Testing

BRI - W RO R TR/ E

Hong Kong Council for Testing and Certification - Panel on Promoting Testing and Certification Services in Environmental Protection Trade

ERRNRER - HEBRFRITERBMBERE /N

Hong Kong Council for Testing and Certification - Panel on Promoting Testing and Certification Services in Food Trade

EERUNRER - RRRINRERBEEEZES

Hong Kong Deposit Protection Board - Advisory Panel on Communication and Public Education

BEETRRERZES - EEHE/E

Hong Kong Federation of Insurers - Appeals Tribunal

BEBREERS - EREAE

Hong Kong Federation of Insurers - Insurance Agents Registration Board

TRRBREERE - RRENEETRES

Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited - Consultative and Advisory Panel

ERERRAMERERAR - £AARES

Hong Kong Mediation Accreditation Association Limited - Council Membership

ERAMEBTEHREERAT - REEEE

Hong Kong Monetary Authority - Banking Consumer Education Taskforce

ERTHEER - RITEEEHE LENE

Hong Kong Monetary Authority - Deposit taking Companies Advisory Committee

ERTHEER - BXGERATBHAER

Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation - Board of Directors

ERZRBESBRAT - EEREE

Innovation and Technology Commission - Panel on Promoting Testing and Certification Services in Jewellery Trade

BIMTRIE - EBRE TR ERENME

Insurance Claims Complaints Bureau - Insurance Claims Complaints Panel

RERERFR - RERERFERES

Investor Education Centre - Advisory Committee

REERBERL - BHAEER

Judiciary - Adwsory Group of the Working Party on Review of Solicitors' Hourly Rates for Party and Party Taxation
ANEWIE - R TIRAR T TR | STER BN S/ R E R AR F TR/ ERERR/E

Judiciary - Chief Justice's Working Party on Review of Solicitors' Hourly Rates for Party and Party Taxation
AVEWIE - BREER TRAART HRTEE | STE A E RN G/ )\ E 2 s TENE

Land Registry - Land Titles Ordinance Steering Committee

TibEEME - TR EGHIBERES

Office of the Commissioner of Insurance - Insurance Advisory Committee

REXEEE - RBELHARES

Office of the Communications Authority - Radio Spectrum and Technical Standards Advisory Committee

BNEREERPAE - BIREEL A RITRELAZES

Office of the Communications Authority - Telecommunications Regulatory Affairs Advisory Committee

BREBEERRAE - BRESHLARES

Office of the Communications Authority - Telecommunications Users and Consumers Advisory Committee

BNEEEERPAE - ENRBRFIEBESAZES

Official Receiver's Office - Services Advisory Committee

WEEEE - RELBHARES

Securities and Futures Commission - Products Advisory Committee

EFLAEEBERRER - ERLARES

Steering Committee on Review of Hospital Authority

BREERREEREY

Steering Committee on Review of Regulation of Private Healthcare Facilities

EEFRERERBEEES

Tourism Comm|55|on Adwsory Committee on Travel Agents

IREEBE - IRTREMZAR

Tourism Commission - Travel Industry Compensation Fund Management Board

IRBEEBE - REXBEECEERER

Transport Department - Quality Public Light Bus Services Steering Committee

ERE - REANERBEEEERES

Transport Department - Quality Taxi Services Steering Committee

ERE - RENLRBEEERES

Vocational Training Council - Beauty Care & Hairdressing Training Board

BEIRE - RRXEIIREES

Vocational Training Council - Working Group on Regulation of Medical Devices (Aesthetics Related)

BEAERE - BRESRGERERNRELENE

Water Supplies Department — Task Force on Voluntary Water Efficiency Labelling Scheme

KHEE - AR RETE TENE
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Consumer Legal Action Fund

Management Committee
HEERNRETEHREZESR

1. Mr. Samuel CHAN Ka-yan [H%ER AT2EM

2. Mr. Anderson CHOW Ka-ming, SC REZRRBE RAERT

Mr. Selwyn YU Sing-cheung, SC #H&E & FEAREM

Mr. Matthew LAM Kin-hong, MH #kiZERsc4: » 48885

Ms. Gilly WONG Fung-han &Bif%+

Ms. Jessica YOUNG Yee-kit 1555212

Mr. Kenneth WONG Wing-yan &k E1ERH

Mr. LO Pui-yin (since 2013-04-01) Z&MsAKEER (1 2013-04-01)
Mr. Alex LAl Ting-hong ZRRzERR{2EM

10.Prof. Angela NG Lai-ping REESEHIR

11. Ms. Alice LEE Suet-ching £2E&4+

© ® N O 0 o» W

12.Dr. LUl Wing-cheong ZkEE
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Annual Report Of The

Consumer Legal Action Fund
HEB T AERFR

The Consumer Council is the Trustee of the Consumer Legal Action Fund
(CLAF) through a Declaration of Trust executed on 30 November 1994.

HEEZREEE

Purpose

The Fund was established with an initial Government grant of
$10 million. A further sum of $10 million was granted by the
Government to the Fund in May 2010. The Fund aims to give easier
consumer access to legal remedies by providing financial support
and legal assistance for the benefit of consumers, particularly,
groups with similar grievances in cases involving significant public
interest and injustice. Through supporting justifiable cases, the
Fund also aims to deter business malpractices and enhance public
awareness of their consumer rights.

Administration

The Consumer Council, as the Trustee, is responsible, through
a Board of Administrators, for the overall administration and
investment of the Fund. The Board of Administrators is in turn
underpinned by a Management Committee. The latter, whose
members were appointed by the Commerce and Economic
Development Bureau, is responsible for advising on the eligibility
and merits of applications seeking assistance from the Fund.’

Operation

It is a long-standing practice of the Council to help consumers
resolve their complaints vis-a-vis the traders concerned. The
Council may, if it considers appropriate or if the complainants so
request, refer cases of complaints to the Fund for consideration.
Consumers may also apply to the Fund directly for assistance.

Generally, the Fund, in examining an application for assistance,
will consider whether all other means of dispute resolution have
been exhausted and assess the case against established eligibility
criteria. Such criteria include whether the case involves significant
consumer interest; whether a large group of consumers have been

HEERAEDS (BEES) AEEE A B2M994F11A30H - KIBEFTEAMIL

B8y

EE R )R EBUTEFR1,0008 7T 72201045
RABEBGEF,0008 T RBEEREEERE
BRSBTS RERARNBMARNEML
BB ERLEBNEEERERBEENEE-
ERHIARRER ESEEBLIAENKET
%5 RERRRBMFIERBE B AR -

THER

FERESNERN ASEBESRITRES KB

BESHTRERE PTERESEMRFFER
TERNESEREREEMNER BEFBAR

EREER MEARNBEREANE EBZ

RERBERICERBREML -

)I]]]u

EEiEF
AE—ARNHEEE R MFIER P2 ER
i EEEBRANERFARKT SR ERE
NESERIGTHE HEET U ERAESREN
FRFR ©

—RAKH BSERERIR EEERRES
EEREMBRNE WRERELEAZERF HE
BELEEAERE BREGSRERNWHES
TEANBRERS BHRE 25

%H
)4}\

T See Annex A for the Membership of the Board of Administrators and Management Committee.

HEEFAESNITEEENEERER A RNGR -
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or will potentially be adversely affected; whether the case has a
reasonable chance of success; whether the matter concerned can
promote the consumer cause and produce deterrent effects on
unscrupulous business practices; and whether it is practicable for
the Fund to offer timely assistance.

Deliberation

During the year under review, the Management Committee held
four meetings and resolved matters by circulation on 12 occasions,
while the Board of Administrators held one meeting and resolved
matters by circulation on 9 occasions.

Altogether, the Fund considered 23 applications of different
categories during the year under review.

After thorough consideration, the Fund declined 18 applications
relating to complaints about financial services, telecommunication
services, insurance, sale of real property, sale of goods, property
related services, and funeral and burial services. There are
2 applications which are still under consideration, which are
concerned with property related services and food and catering
services respectively.

During the reporting period, the Fund has granted assistance
to 3 applications relating to financial services, property related
services, and time sharing scheme respectively.

New Assisted Cases ZzimzfE=

Lehman-related Financial Product (Case 5)

The Fund has granted assistance to one Lehman-related case this
year.

The assisted consumers of this case are a retired couple.
They alleged that a bank officer had made false or misleading
representations regarding the nature and potential risks of Equity
Linked Notes, and that the bank officer had failed to properly
conduct risk assessment for them before they purchased the
product. They also doubted the accuracy of the outcome of the
risk assessment.

At the pre-action stage, the defendant bank made settlement
offers, which however were rejected by the assisted consumers
since they considered the offers to be too low.
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After commencement of proceedings, the defendant bank made
a further offer by way of sanctioned payment. On the advice of
counsel and solicitors, and with the endorsement of the Fund, the
assisted consumers accepted the defendant bank’s offer in full and
final settlement of their claim. The defendant bank also paid an
agreed sum in full and final settlement of the assisted consumers’
legal costs.

Headquarters and Professional Staff Cost
Charged by a Management Company of a
Residential Housing Estate

In addition to the remuneration provided for under the Deed of
Mutual Covenant (DMC), the management company of a residential
housing estate charged the owners a fee under the description of
“Headquarters and Professional Staff Costs”, which was invariably
charged at 3% of the management fees received though the
management company intimated that 3% was only the cap.
The owners considered that the management company was not
entitled to this charge on top of the management fees. They
alleged that all along such fee had been charged without their
knowledge or consent and it was not provided for under the terms
of the DMC.

The Fund considered that the issues involve significant consumer
and public interests. Therefore, assistance was granted to 3
individual owners of the housing estate to apply for declaratory
relief from the Court on the justifiability of the Headquarters and
Professional Staff Costs charged by the management company.
Preparation for commencement of legal proceedings by the
solicitors instructed by the Fund for the assisted consumers was
underway during the reporting period.

Time-sharing Scheme

This case is concerned with an agreement for membership of a
time-sharing scheme. The assisted consumer was allegedly induced
into the contract by misrepresentation and unconscionable
conduct. Before making an application to the Fund, the assisted
consumer has commenced legal proceedings on his own. The Fund
assisted him to continue the legal proceedings in the District Court
for the purpose of, among others, obtaining declaratory relief that
the contract was unconscionable and not enforceable.

Preparation was underway during the reporting period by the
solicitors instructed by the Fund for making the application to the
court for the redress sought by the assisted consumer.
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Cases Carried over from Previous Year #&EramEs

The Fund continued to work on the following cases brought
forward from the previous year.

Delay in Completion of a Residential
Development

After the assisted consumers’ claims in the High Court proceedings
and the related District Court proceedings were settled, the
outstanding issue was the amount of legal costs payable to the
assisted consumers by the defendant developer. The issue was
finally resolved by having the costs assessed by the Court in
taxation proceedings which was completed around the end of
2013. By the end of the reporting period, the Fund was in the
course of finalizing the accounts on costs and deliberating on the
contribution to be made by the assisted consumers.

Lehman-related Financial Product (Case 3)

After the assisted consumer had accepted the defendant bank’s
offer in full and final settlement of her claim as stated in the last
report, through negotiations, the parties reached an agreement
on the legal costs and the defendant bank paid an agreed sum in
full and final settlement of the assisted consumer’s legal costs
incurred.

Lehman-related Financial Product (Case 4)

When this case was at the interlocutory stage, the defendant bank
made a settlement offer containing a confidentiality requirement.
This offer was rejected by the assisted consumer because the
confidentiality requirement was against the Fund’s Non-Confidentiality
Policy and the amount offered was on the low side.

Subsequently, the defendant bank made a further settlement
attempt by way of sanctioned payment without imposing any
confidentiality requirement. Having considered the advice of the
counsel and the solicitors, and with the agreement of the Fund,
the assisted consumer accepted the defendant bank’s offer in full
and final settlement of her claim. The defendant bank also paid an
agreed sum in full and final settlement of the legal costs incurred
by the assisted consumer.
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Sale of a Private Vehicle - Claims of
Misrepresentation and Unfair Sales Tactics

The assisted consumer’s claim against the car dealer in the Small
Claims Tribunal continued during the reporting period. Settlement
negotiations between the parties were conducted during the
reporting period. Eventually, with the assistance of the Fund, the
defendant conceded that the confidentiality requirement proposed
by the defendant should be confined to the settlement amount
only, which was acceptable by the assisted consumer and endorsed
by the Fund. Shortly after the reporting period, the assisted
consumer and the car dealer have finally reached a settlement of
the claim satisfactorily.

Beauty Services - Claims of Fraudulent
Misrepresentation and Unconscionable
Conduct

This assisted case is concerned with a beauty salon which was
named and reprimanded by the Council in February 2012 for
complaints of repeated engagement in unscrupulous sales tactics,
involving misrepresentations and high pressure sales tactics.

The assisted consumer claims that as a result of fraudulent
misrepresentations regarding a ‘Spokesperson Programme’ and
unconscionable conduct of the trader, she entered into various
contracts for beauty and slimming treatments.

Solicitors instructed by the Fund have issued demand letters
for the assisted consumer to the beauty salon and its related
company, which however denied the assisted consumer’s claim.
The solicitors and counsel are in the course of finalizing the
Statement of Claim and the Writ of Summons and will commence
legal proceedings shortly.
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Statistics

Since its establishment and up until the year under review, the
Fund has received a total of 1,283 applications and has granted

assistance to 687 applications.2

Finance

The Fund is self-financed with income derived from:
(a) investing the capital sum in fixed deposits and bonds;

(b) charging each applicant a fee of HK$100 each for cases within
the jurisdiction of the Small Claims Tribunal and HK$1,000 each
for other court cases;

(c) recovering legal costs from defendants in successful cases; and

(d) receiving from each successful case a contribution of 10% of
the benefits gained by the assisted consumer.

As at 31 March 2014, the Fund had a balance of about HK$15.74
million.3
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Applications for :
Consumer Legal Action Fund

HEB RS A ERMET

Number of applications received since 30 November 1994

B1994411H30B LR BEERENHAREE 1,283
® Problem solved during application 15 HAE B B AR 170
® Under consideration {j7E&EH 5
® Assistance granted BEESH T @B FE 687

Compensation recovered &5 85E

o out-of-court settlement FEFNNfE 189

o judgment obtained #EBFFEEN 16

Not pursued further REIR#E

e no recovery prospect [REEEATAL 465

o application withdrawn [AIFE 5[] 5

o terminated by the Fund #ES#1E 7

Referred to Legal Aid BEXEEIEHE 1

In process gRIEH 4
® Referred to Council for policy consideration 33 HE2ER R R I 3
® Referred to Council for conciliation/monitoring 33 E 23S/ 252 10
® Assistance declined RNEHRERE 408

Annex B ¢ ff{#% 2,




Annex C « [fi 8k

CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND
(Established in Hong Kong under a Deed of Trust)

Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2014

149



150

CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PAGE(S)

1&2

7-14

Annex C « i #78



Annex C « [fi 8k

Deloitte.
®E)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE TRUSTEE OF CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND
(Established in Hong Kong under the Deed of Trust dated 30 November 1994)

We have audited the financial statements of Consumer Legal Action Fund (the "Fund") set out on
pages 3 to 14, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the
income and expenditure statement, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Board of Administrators' Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Board of Administrators is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control as the
board of administrators determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Fund's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the board of administrators, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE TRUSTEE OF CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND - continued
(Established in Hong Kong under the Deed of Trust dated 30 November 1994)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund's affairs
as at 31 March 2014 and of its deficit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

- (r/
Dol }4&( ’ (a ol
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
28 July 2014
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Annex C « [fi &R

2014 2013
HK$ HK$
Income
Bank interest income 119,018 106,740
Interest income from a held-to-maturity debt security 35,323 189,600
Application fee from assisted consumers 7,300 14,200
Sundry income 386,287 2,119,575
547,928 2,430,115
Less:
Expenditure
Auditor's remuneration 13,900 13,300
Administrative service expenses 2,354,000 2,374,000
Bank charges 2,850 1,930
Legal fees for assisted consumers 75,464 202,540
Amortisation of premium on a held-to-maturity debt security 1,857 11,139
Sundry expenses 2,730 1,532
2,450,801 2,604,441
Deficit for the year (1,902,873) (174,326)
-3-
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 MARCH 2014

NOTES 2014 2013
HK$ HK$
Non-current assets
Held-to-maturity debt security 6 - 3,951,857
Current assets
Interest and other receivables 11,455 101,231
Bank balances 7 20,292,687 18,215,100
20,304,142 18,316,331
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,207,113 2,248,286
Amount due to the Trustee 8 2,354,000 2,374,000
4,561,113 4,622,286
Net current assets 15,743,029 13,694,045
15,743,029 17,645,902
Capital and reserve
Capital 20,000,000 20,000,000
Accumulated deficit (4,256,971) (2,354,098)
15,743,029 17,645,902

The financial statements on pages 3 to 14 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Administrators on 28 July 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ay /Z,Lw%(

“ ADMINISTRATOR \u@MINISTRAm
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Annex C « [fi &R

Accumulated
Capital deficit Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$
At 1 April 2012 20,000,000 (2,179,772) 17,820,228
Deficit for the year - (174,326) (174,326)
At 31 March 2013 20,000,000 (2,354,098) 17,645,902
Deficit for the year - (1,902,873) (1,902,873)
At 31 March 2014 20,000,000 (4,256,971) 15,743,029
-5-
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

Annex C « i #78

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
2014 2013
HK$ HK$
Operating activities
Deficit for the year (1,902,873) (174,326)
Adjustments for:
Bank interest income (119,018) (106,740)
Interest income from a held-to-maturity debt security (35,323) (189,600)
Amortisation of premium on a held-to-maturity debt security 1,857 11,139
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (2,055,357) (459,527)
Increase in interest and other receivables (7,480) -
(Decrease) increase in amount due to the Trustee (20,000) 327,000
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses (41,173) 1,938,485
Net cash (used in) from operating activities (2,124,010) 1,805,958
Investing activities
Interest received 251,597 316,621
Redemption of a held-to maturity debt security 3,950,000 -
Cash from investing activities 4,201,597 316,621
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,077,587 2,122,579
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 18,215,100 16,092,521
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
represented by bank balances 20,292,687 18,215,100
-6-
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

1. OBJECTIVES AND OPERATION OF THE FUND

The Consumer Legal Action Fund (the "Fund") was established on 30 November 1994 under a
Deed of Trust with the Consumer Council as the trustee (the "Trustee") for the purpose of offering
financial assistance to consumers in seeking legal redress, remedies and protection. The
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the "HKSAR") has granted a sum
of HK$10 million as initial capital to the Fund. The capital should be repayable to the HKSAR
upon termination. Additional capital amounting to HK$10 million was further injected by the
HKSAR to the fund on 6 September 2010 increasing the capital to HK$20 million.

The address of the registered office and principal place of operation of the Trustee is 22nd Floor,
K. Wah Centre, 191 Java Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is same as the functional
currency of the Fund.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Fund has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 and Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on these financial statements for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these financial statements.
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") - continued

The Fund has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

158

are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38
Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

permitted.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle?

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9 and Transition
Disclosures’

Investment Entities'

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations*

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions®

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets’

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting’'

Levies'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014, with earlier application

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, with certain exceptions.
Available for application - the mandatory effective date will be determined when the

outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.

The Board of Administrators anticipates that the application of the above new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the financial position of the Fund.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services. The principal accounting policies adopted are as

follows:

Revenue recognition

Interest income from a financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Fund and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimate future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

-8-
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CONSUMER LEGAL ACTION FUND

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Cost of financial assistance
All costs connected with the provision of financial assistance rendered to consumers are recorded
on an accrual basis and charged against income and expenditure account in the period incurred.

Any costs recoverable from assisted consumers are recorded as income upon receipt.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Fund's statement of financial
position when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Fund's financial assets are classified as held-to-maturity investments, and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
Held-to-maturity debt securities

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that the Board of Administrators of the Fund has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity debt

securities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial assets - continued
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including interest and other receivables and bank balances) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated

future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through income or expenditure to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Fund are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Fund

after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Fund are recognised at the
proceed received, net of direct issue cost.

-10-
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments - continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fee paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable and accrued expenses, and amount due to the
Trustee) are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Fund derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Fund neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Fund
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised
in the income and expenditure statement.

The Fund derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Fund's obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in the income and
expenditure statement.

4. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The capital structure of the Fund consists of capital from HKSAR and accumulated surplus, if
any.

The HKSAR has granted a sum of HK$20 million as capital to the Fund. The Board of
Administrators of the Fund manages the Fund's capital to ensure that the Fund will be able to

continue as a going concern. The overall strategy of capital management remains unchanged from
prior year.

-11-
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3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments
2014 2013
HKS$ HK$
Financial assets
Held-to-maturity debt security - 3,951,857
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash
equivalents) 20,304,142 18,316,331
20,304,142 22,268,188
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 4,561,113 4,622,286

b. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Fund's major financial instruments include held-to-maturity debt security, interest and
other receivables, bank balances, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and amount due
to the Trustee.
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The Board of Administrators of the Fund manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because majority of the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Fund's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars since the transactions are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Accordingly, the Board of Administrators of the Fund
considers the foreign exchange risk is not significant.

Interest rate risk

The Fund has no significant interest rate risk as it does not have any interest-bearing
financial assets or financial liabilities other than cash placed with financial institutions.

-12-
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - continued
b. Financial risk management objectives and policies - continued
Ligquidity risk

The Fund is exposed to minimal liquidity risk as the Board of Administrators closely
monitors its cash flow.

The earliest date on which the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities, representing
non-interest bearing financial liabilities of the Fund, can be required to pay is 3 months or
less.

c. Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The Board of Administrators of the Fund considers that the carrying values of financial

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

6. HELD-TO-MATURITY DEBT SECURITY

2014 2013

HKS$ HKS$
Debt security listed in Hong Kong - 3,951,857
Market value of debt security - 3,977,315

7. BANK BALANCES

Bank balances comprise cash and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less and carry interest at market rates which ranged from 0.7% to 1.45% (2013: 0.5% to 1.25%)
Pper annum.

8. AMOUNT DUE TO THE TRUSTEE

The amount represents administrative service expenses payable to the Trustee, details of which are
set out in note 9.

-13-
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Fund incurred administrative service expenses amounted to HK$2,354,000
(2013: HK$2,374,000) for the administrative service and office support (comprising salary costs
and attributable overheads) provided to the Fund. The recharge by the Trustee is in accordance
with the provision of the Trust Deed governing the Fund and approved by both the Council and
the Board of Administrators of the Fund.

-14 -
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